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SEC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION C|QDE AND SRG RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. .For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008

2, Commission identification number 184044

3. BIR Tax identification No'__000-775-860

4, Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter JG Summit Holdings, Inc.
5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
. [ .
Pasig City, Philipplnes
. [

6. Industry Classification Code:

(SEC Use Only)
7. Address of registrant's principallofﬂce _ Postal Code

. 43" Floor, Robinsons-Equitable. Tower ADB Ave. corner Poveda Road, Pasig City 1600

8. Registrant's telephone number, Including area code

{632) 633-7631 !
f
9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

" Not Applicable o

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class L Number of shares of common
' stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding
s& ¥ -Common Stock 6,797,191,657

l‘;
wlad,
:-1-"1
ha N
®
)
L
]

Y

1
p

Are any or all of the securities listéd on the Philippine Stock Exchange?
. o

-Yes [/] No [ ]

[




12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant;

4

(a) has filed all reports requ'jred to be filed by Section 11 of the Revised Securities Act (RSA)
and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the

Philippines, during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to
file such reports)

Yes [/] No [ ] |

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes [/] No [ ]

. PAl:RT {--FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 1. Financial Statements,

The unaudited consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this Form 17-Q.

Item 2. Management's DIscussion and Analysis of Financlal Condition and Results of
Operatlons. ‘

Results of Operations

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 vs. September 30, 2007

JG Summit’s revenues for the third quarter of 2008 amounted to P23.88 billion, bringing our revenues
for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 to BF68.78 billion. This was up 11.0% from last year's
R61.94 pillion in the same period. Our net income for the nine months of 2008, however, dropped
86.2% from R5.07 billion to B701.65 million. The volatility of the peso-dollar exhange rate and the
crisis which hit the financial markets globally have greatly affected the Group's revenues and
boltomline. Higher translated level of dollar-denominated borrowings had caused the Company to
record a net forex loss of P3.06 billion compared to a net forex gain of P3.80 billion recorded in the

same period last year as the country then experienced a stronger peso. In addition, the Group
- regorded mark-to-market losses during the nine months of fiscal 2008 amounting to P2.40 billion as

'a prices in the capital markets fell sharply during the period, while a mark-to-market gain amounting to

. market losses, increased 97.5% from R2.21 billion to P4.37 billion.

oL
P

P450.-71 million was recognized last year. Our core net earnings, excluding the effects of forex and

8

., P A
. Céflsplidated revenues' growth of 11.0% to B8B.78 billion included the effects of forex and market
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loéses: Revenues from our core businesses actually increased 29.9% from 252.96 bitfion to R68.80
billion during the period as most of our business units posted double-digit revenue growth. Cebu

 Pacific, the Company’s airline business, posted revenue growth of 28.3% compared to the same
: period last year from R10.89 billion to B13.98 billion. Net sales from our petrochemical business

_reached B6.94 billion for the nine months of this year compared o B2.57 billion net sales recorded

last year. Our foods, telecommunications and property businesses have likewise increased revenues
by 17.8%, 27.2% and 30.6%, respectively, compared to last year.

interest income for the nine monthg of 2008 declined 24.1% from B3.41 billion to B2.59 billion due to
lower average investment portfolio during the period as compared to last year's.




~ Other income (expense) account, which includes forex and valuation gains from our financial
instruments, posted a negative batance amounting to B4.11 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008, while last year's other income amounted to P4.64 billion. As earlier mentioned,
forex losses recorded during the period amounted to P3.06 billion compared to a net forex gain of
P3.80 biflion for the same period last year. Aside from this, the worldwide drop in bond and equity

prices has resulted to the Company's recognition of a net mark-to-market loss of B2.40 biltion this
year from a net mark-to-market gain of P450.71 million last year,

Consolidated cost of sales and services for the nine months of the year increased by 39.6% from
P33.42 billion last year to R46.68 billion as the production level of our petrochemical business has
picked up during the year. In addition, the food business’ cost of sales during the period also
increased due to higher sales volume and higher costs of raw materials. Cost of services in our air

transportation business also increased drastically as fuel prices went up significantly during the first
three quarters of the year.

Consolidated operating expenses increased 12.1% as a result of higher operating expenses in our

mobile phone network, increased airline operations and expansion of our international branded food
operations.

Financing costs and other charges incurred for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 dropped

15.2% due to lower leve! of deht financing and lower average interest rate as compared to the same
period last year.

Provision for income tax declined 67.8% due to recognition of a net benefit from deferred income tax
on unrealized foreign exchange loss during the period.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) for the period, amounted to
F12.92 billion, a 31.2% decline from last year's B18.78 billion. Excluding the forex and mark-to-
market losses, EBITDA increased by 26.5% from P14.53 billion last year to F18.38 billion this year.

‘FOODS

- Universal Robina Corporation (URC) registered consolidated net sales and services of
P32.39 billion for the nine months ended June 30, 2008, 17.9% higher than the revenues recorded in
the same period of last year. Net sales and services performance by business segment follows: .(1)
URC's BCFG (excluding packaging) increased by P3.84 billion or 19.0% to R24.09 billion for the nine
months of fiscal 2008 from P20.25 billion registered in the same period of last year. This increase
.was primarily due to an 18.5% increase in net sales from BCFG's domestic operations, which was

- largely driven by the strong performance of its snackfoods, beverage and grocery, which posted

¢ .. growth of 20.8%, 11.8% and 17.4% in sales value, respectively. BCFG International sgles mcrea;ed
" . by 20.4% to P6.60 billion supported by higher sales from Vietnam, Thailand, Malaysg and China.
~. B The net sales in URC's packaging division rose to B1.13 billion for the nine months of fiscal 2008 or
-Eg""up 54.8% from B730 million reported in the same period last year due to an increase in sales volume.
255 (A)-URC's AIG net sales aggregated to B3.91 biflion for the nine months, slightly lower from 93.?2
-‘&;: bilfon last year brought about by decrease in sales of feeds and poultry business by 4.9% and 18.5 Yo,
T r'ék‘peétively, due to decline in sales volume. (3) URC's CFG revenues amounted to P3.26 billion _for

' tﬁ‘é“mine months ended June 30, 2008 or up 26.2% from R2.58 billion reported for the same period
Iabt year. Flour net sales went up by 23.8% to P2.41 billion from P1.95 billion posted from the same
period last year on the back of an’increase in average sefling price. Moreover, sugar net sales
tncreased by 33.6% to P848 million from P634 million recorded last year as a result of higher sales
volume. )

URC's cost of sales and services increased to P24.57 billion for the nine months of fiscal 2008, or
20.9% from P20.32 biftion reported in the same period last year. Cost of sales and services went up




due to increase in sales volume and costs of major raw materials as well as bunker fuel and diesel.
URC's gross profit for the nine months of fiscal 2008 amounted to R7.82 billion, 9.3% up from B7.16
billion recorded in the same period last year. Operating expenses increased by F373 million or 7.9%
to B5.11 billion due to increase in freight and other selling expenses brought about by higher trucking
and shipping costs associated with higher fuel prices and increased sales volume. Compensation
and other benefits also increased by 11.2% due to annual salary adjustment and accrual of pension

expense. Depreciation expense went up by P45 million or 29.7% due te additional charges from new
acquisitions, :

U_RC‘s unaudited net income attributable to equity holders of the parent declined by 77.5% to B1.05
billion because of absence of non-recurring gain on sale of investment of RLC shares and due to

mark-to-market loss on bond holdings resuting from the general drop in bond prices worldwide.

URC’s unaudited core earnings, which is operating income after equity earnings, net finance cost and
other revenues-net, for the nine months of fiscal 2008 went up 8.6% B2.71 bittion from P2.50 billion
reported in the same period last year.

URC and its majority-owned subsidiaries’ key performance indicators are sales, EBIT {income from

operations), EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and other non-
cash items)}, nel income and total assets.

-~

PROPERTY

Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC) posted gross revenues of B2.92 biilion for the third quarter of
fiscal year 2008 bringing its nine months’ revenue performance to B8.16 billion this year or a 25%
growth from B6.55 billion in the same period last year. Net income for the three quarters grew by

16%, from last year's R1.82 billion to B2.12 billion this year. EBITDA stood at P4.03 billion, 12%
higher than last year's B3.58 billion. :

RLC's High Rise Residential Buildings Division’s accounted for 40% of RLC's revenues. Its nine
months’ performance resulted to a 56% growth in revenues, from B2.10 bitlion last year to R3.28

- billion this year, due mainly to initial recognition of realized revenues from five of its ongoing projects,

the East of Galleria in.Ortigas, the Gateway Garden Ridge in Mandaluyong, the McKinley Park

" Residence in Fort Bonifacio, Otis 888 in Manila and Adriatico Place 3.
, _ ,

The Office Bulldings Division contri:buted 9% or R704 million of RLC's revenues, up by 29% from last
year's P545 million. Lease income was derived from its five office buildings, Galleria Corporate

Center, Robinsons Equitable Towér, Robinsons Summit Center and Robinsons Cybergate Center
Towers 1 and 2, |

thme;cial Centers Division contributed 34% or B2.77 billion of RLC's gross revenues, posting a 7%

gfowth for the nine-month period. |’ Significant contributors inciude: Galleria Mall in Ortigas, Metro
East Mall in Pasig, Robinsons Manila and other provincial malls, which posted a decent growth in

. . rental revenues.
R

S , ! - .
The Motel Division, showed revenue growth of 4% from P819.2 million last year to R850.2 million this
year.  The increase in hotel revenues was principally due to the 11.2% growth in revenues of Crowne
Plaza Hotel and 10.7% growth of Cebu Midtown Hotel. ’

|
‘The Housing and Land Development Division, through its two subsidiaries, Robinsons Homes, Inc.

and Trion Homes Development Corp., reported realized revenues amounling-to B554.4 mi!iion,
against last year's B492.4 million. Business is expected to pick up with the infusion of new projects

-for the rest of the year. |




Real Estate cosl increased by 52% from B2.32 billion last year to R3.54 billion this year due to higher
units sold and to higher project completion by High Rise Division projects. Hotel costs and expenses
increased by 4% due to higher operating cost of Crowne Plaza brought by higher level of operations.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS :

DIGITEL generated consolidated service and non-service revenues for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 registered a 27.2% growth over same period last year to B7,717.9 million driven
primarily by the remarkable improvement in the wireless segment of 68.1%.

The wireline voice communication services registered service and non-service revenues of R2,748.3
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008. This is a 9.0% decline over last year's
revenues of B3,019.0 million mainly due to lower international and domestic tolls. It was further
exacerbated by the decreasing average rate per minute and lower average exchange rate this year of
B43.19:US$1 versus P47.14:US$1 over same period last year. Providing cushion to the reduced
international and domestic traffic is the growth of ADSL products. This service registered an increase
of 53% compared to same period last year. Revenues for wireline data communication services for
the nine months ended September30, 2008 amounted to P316.4 million posting a decrease of 8.7%
over the same period last year of R346.5 million. This is mainly due to inclusion last year of one-time
rental revenues of International Private Leased Circuit (IPLC) services to certain carriers and lower
average exchange rate this year. The wireless communications business posted a remarkable 68.1%
improvement in its operating revenues of £4,741.4 miflion during the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2008 from R2,820.8 million during the same period last year. Net service revenues,
70% of which accounts for unlimited services, improved substantially by 88.9% against reported
revenues of the same period last l«ear. This is mainly attributable to the continued success of the
untimited service portfolio (e.g. 24/7 Call & Text Unlimited and Text Unlimited} and increase in
subscriber count from the Group Plans and Plan 350 products. In addition, upgrading the services by

continuously expanding network coverage thru aggressive network rollouts directly contributed to the
increase of subscriber base. |

Consolidated operating expenses also increased to P5,408.9 million, higher by B842.7 million than
the consolidated figure of P4,566.g million for the same period in 2007. This was due to a 33.7% or
R207.3 million increase in cost of sales during the period and 28.5% or R490.0 million increase in

general and administrative expenses on account of higher marketing and selling expenses, utifities
and outside services.

l -
Net'loss increased from R229.0 million in 2007 to P2,725.4 miltion in 2008 largely due to net foreign
exchange loss and market valuation loss recognized in 2008 amounting .to P2,484.0 million as
agdinst the net foreign exchange gain and market valuation gain amounting to B2,661.2 million

reported for the same period in 2007.

gy I'udihg the foreign exchange and market valuation gains and losses, net loss for the period ended

Sebtember 30, 2008 is at P241.4 million, lower by 91.6% versus P2,890.2 million net loss during the

¥ same period last year.

L‘JIEITEL registered a consofidated EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax'e:s, depfeciation and
amortization) period is R2,309.1 miffion, higher by 53.7% against R1,502.3 million during the same
period in 2007 due primarily to the higher service and non-service revenues generated by the
wireless business.
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AIR TRANSPORTATION ,
Cebu Air, Inc. {Cebu Pacific) generated gross revenues of P13.98 biilion for the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2008, a 28.3% increase over last year's R10.89 biilion brought about by
additional routes and flights. Correspondingly, costs and operating expenses increased from P8.98
billon last year to F13.23 billion this year. This was due to higher operations-related expenses,
particularly, fuel cost which posted an 96.0% increase from B3.33 bifion last year to P6.53 biliion this
year. In addition, Cebu Pacific ria'cognized a foreign exchange toss from its dollar denominated
obligations amounting to B1.57 billion during the period compared to a foreign exchange gain of
R1.06 biltion recorded last year. This resulted to a net loss for the airfine business of £1.87 billion for
the nine-month period of fiscal 2008 compared to a net income of B2.53 billion for the same period
last year. Excluding forex and imark-to-market effect, net income for the nine-month period
September 30, 2008 amounted to R187.71 mitfion while last year's amounted to B1.41 billion.

s [

PETROCHEMICALS

JG Summit Petrochemicals Corporation’s (JGSPC) revenue for the first nine months of 2008 rose
to P6.94 billion from R2.57 billion last year as a result of higher sales volume from 38,267 MT last
year to 105,218 MT this year in the same period. Gross margin had a complete turnaround from a
negative 8.7% last year to positive 6.0% this year. Operating expenses increased by 51.1% relative to
higher production the period. The significant increase in gross profit contributed to the drop in net
loss this year, from P666.72 million last year to B330.07 million this year.

EQUITY EARNINGS

Equity earnings from associated companies and joint ventures were reported at P1.49 bitlion for the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2008, higher by 38.6% from last year's equity earnings of
R925.40 milion. The growth was attributable to higher income recorded by UIC this year, from
SGD75.84 million last year to SGD127.94 million this year as it reported higher sale of properties,
increased rental income and higher revenues of Pan Pacific hotel. The increase was partly offset by

the decline in FPPC's net income which dropped 34.4% from B522.72 million in 2007 to #343.03
million in 2008.

DISCONTINUEL OPERATIONS

Litton Mills, Inc. ceased operations in November 2006. Net income from discontinued operations
during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 amounted to R100.9 million is mainly due to
recognition of gain on sale of fixed assets amounting to B73.75 million. Last year, the textile business
still operated for two months resulting to a net loss of B324.87 million.

Financial Position
Séptember 30, 2008 vs. December 31, 2007
oA
As o‘_f-':?;e tember 30, 2008, the Company's balance sheet remains solid, with lconsolidated assets of
B246.417/billion from R229.93 billion as of December 31, 2007. Current ratio stood at 1.16. The

Company’s indebtedness remained manageable with a gearing ratio of 1.01:1 and net debt to equity
of 0.75:1 as'of September 30, 2008.

i Cash and ‘cash equivalents totaled R7.87 billion as of September 30, 2008 down by 40.9% from
" 13,32 billion as of December 31', 2007. The principal sources of cash were from operating and

financing activities amounting to P9.85 billion and F11.78 billion, respectively. As of S}aptember 30,
2008, net cash used in investing activities amounted to P27.07 billion. Investment in bonds and
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equity securities, presented under finarcial assets at fair value through profit and loss, available for
sale investments and held-to-matlirity investments, dropped by 10.4% from P24.24 bilion as of
December 31, 2007 to B21.71 billion as of September 30, 2008 as the Group used partially its fiquid

assets for its capital expenditures during the period. The Group, however, does not expect any
liquidity problems that may arise in the near future.

Receivables went up by 9.7% from B17.51 billion as of December 31, 2007 to R19.21 billion as of
September 30, 2008 mainly due to higher level of finance receivables from our banking business.

Inventories increased by 58.6% from B10.30 billion as of December 31, 2007 to RP16.34 billion as of
September 30, 2008 due to increased level of raw materials, finished goods, materials in transit and
spare parts inventories to meet sales demand and fixed assets' maintenance.

Derivative assets dropped 47.9% from B3.30 billion in December 2007 to B1.72 bilion as of
September 30, 2008 as outstanding currency forwards at the start of the year matured over the past
months and market values have been gravely affected by the financial markets crisis.

Other current assets recorded an increase of 13.0% from B5.02 billion in December 31, 2007 to

B5.67 bilion as of September 30, 2008 due to higher level of input tax and prepaid advertising
expenses,

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale pertains to total assets of the textile business,
which ceased operation last year, Outstanding balance of this account further decreased during the

nine months of fiscal 2008 as the textile business continue to dispose of its remaining inventories and
fixed assets.

Investment in associates and joint ventures increased 30.0% to P24.53 billion as of_ S_eptember_so,
2008 from P18.88 biflion in December 31, 2007. The Group, through a subsidiary, acq_ulred
additional shares of UIC during the period, but the main driver of its increase is due to the higher

translated value of our investments in UIC and FPPC, values of which are denominated in foreign
currencies.

‘Investment properties increased 5.0% to P25.26 billion as of September 30, 2008 mainly due to

:continuous development of certain projects of our real estate business during the period.

'.Proberty, plant and equipment rosefto P115.12 bitlion as of September 30, 2008, from R105.61 billion

- in December 31, 2007 mainly due to the on-going expansion of the facilities of our cellular
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, Intangibles rose to R880.75 millien in September 2008 compared to R308.38 million as of December
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- telecommunications business, additional aircrafts by the airline division, acquisition of PASSI sugar
, mills,by URC and continuous expansion of the real estate business.

.'Biological assets increased 25.1% to P1.31 billion as of September 30, 2008 due to increase in
+ population of livestocks. ‘

31,:2007 mainly due to purchase :of trademark and product formulation of the food business during
the,period. |
i

| ) argr
* Other noncurrent assets increased, 17.5% from R4.72 billion in December 31, 2007 to R5.54 billion as

of September 30, 2008 due to higher leve! of security deposits during the period.

Acéounls payable and accrued e_xbenses slightly Increased by 1.5% frol_n R27.51 pillion as of year-
end 2007 to P27.91 billion mainly d'qe to higher level of trade payables during the period.




Short-term debt grew 33.1% from R16.98 billion as of December 31, 2007 to P22.60 billion as of

September 30, 2008 due to additional short-term bank loans and trusl receipts obtained by the food
business.

Dt_er_ivative liabilities dropped by 31.8% to B666.63 million as of September 30, 2008 from B978.16
million in December 31, 2007 due to maturity of derivative instruments during the pericd. The effect

of t_he .depreciation of the Philippine peso also affected Capital Market's trading position on these
derivatives resulting to lower aggregate fair values.

Income tax payable increased 90.3% from B308.46 million in December 2007 to R586.92 million in

September 2008 due to higher level of tax payable by the real estate and food businesses plus lower
CWT applied by the food business during the period.

: Liab_ilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale pertains to total liabilities of the
- textile and printing businesses. As of September 30, 2008, outstanding balance of such account

amounted to R13.16 million from P23.43 miflion in December 2007, which can be attributed to
settlement of LMI's remaining payables. ‘

Long-term debt, including current p(_)rtion, increased by 16.6% from B63.03 billion as of December 31,
2007 to R73.48 billion due to peso depreciation, which affected the translated level of the Group's
foreign-denominated obligafions. Further, certain subsidiaries also availed of additional loans.

Deferred income tax liabilities (presented as net of deferred tax asset) dropped 6.8% to P6.17 billion

as of September 30, 2008 mainly due to recognition of deferred tax on unrealized foreign exchange
and mark-to-market lasses during the period,

Stockholders' equity grew to B77.11 billion as of September 30, 2008 from B76.77 billion at the end of

2007. Book value per share improved from P11.30 per share as of December 31, 2007 to F11.34 per
share as of September 30, 2008. '

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
. . |

The Compény sets certain, perfonfnance measures to gauge its operating performance periodically
and to assess its overall state of corporate health. Listed below are the major performance

,-~measQres, which the Company has identified as reliable performance indicators. Analyses are
employed by comparisons and measurements on a consolidated basis based on the financial data as

-
. T
i .,
LR 1 .
.
. .
.
b

of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2008

. "'and 2007 - i

Key Finanglal Indicators 2008 2007

Revenues+ , 68,775 million 61,944 million

EBIT Yoe P5,715 million P12,002 million

EBITDA ¥ ' P12,922 million | P18,776 million

Current ratié "> & - 1.16 1.02

. | .Gearing ratio? "¢ . ' 1.01 0.83

* 7 | Net debt to equity ratio " 0.75 0.51

' Book value per share 11.34 11.30

The manner by which the Company calculates the above key performance indicators for both year-
end 2008 and 2007 is as follows:




Key Financial Indicators

Revenues = | Total of sales and services, interest and investment
income, equity in net earnings and other income

Earnings before interest expense and taxes computed as
net income before nonrecurring items add provision for
income tax and financing costs.

EBITDA = | Eamnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and
amortization computed as net income before nonrecurring
items add (deduct) provision for income tax, financing costs
and depreciation and amortization..

Total current assets over current liabilities

Total Financial Debt over Stockholders' Equity and Minority
Interest.

Total Financial Debt less Cash including Financial Assets
at FVPL and AFS investments (excluding RSB Cash and
AFS investments) over Stockholders’ Equity and Minority
Interest.

Book value per share = | Stockholders’ Eqwty over outstanding no. of common
' shares as of year-end

EBiT =

Current ratio
Gearing ratio

mi{n

]

Net debt to equity ratio

As of September 30, 2008, the Cgmpany is not aware of any events and uncertainties that would
have a material impact on the - Company's net sales, revenues, and income from operations and
future operattons However, because of the economic crisis that has gripped the world over these
recent months, there is no assuralice that the Company's and the Group's operations, will not be

affected materially. The Company is now taking up measures and initiatives that would somehow
cushion the impact.

.The Company, in the normal course of business, makes various commitmen(s and has certain
- contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The

commitments and contingent liabilities include various guarantees, commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit for the purchase of equipment, tax assessments and bank guarantees
through its subsidiary bank. The Company doés not anticipate any material losses as a result of these
transactions.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

12

(In Thousands)
September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
{Unaundited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) P7,872,808 P13,317,839
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 16,701,018 19,240,699
Available-for-sale investments 4,722,323 4,734,603
Receivables - net (Note 7) 19,208,218 17,514,738
Inventories (Note 8) 16,340,065 10,301,591
Derivative assets 1,721,916 3,303,006
Other current assets 5,672,008 5,018,262
72,238,416 73,430,738
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale 368,625 791,630
Total Current Assets 72,607,071 74,222,368
Noncurrent Assets
Held-to-maturity investments 284,207 261,139
Investment properties - net 25,258,597 24,045,776
Investments in associates and joint ventures - net 24,529,794 18,875,832
Property, plant and equipment - net 115,120,411 103,608,377
Goodwill - net 872,795 844,548
Biological assets - bearer 1,314,371 1,050,569
Intangibles - net 880,746 308,379
Other noncurrent assets 5,543,917 4,716,957
Total Noncurrent Assets o 173,804,838 155,711,577
“ r246,411,909 1'229,933,945
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 9) P27,912,216 P27,506,045
Short-term debt (Note 10) ' 22,603,684 16,975,709
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 11) 4,510,289 21,443,503
Income tax payable 586,923 308,459
" Derivative liabilities | 666,631 978,161
Other éurrqnt liabilities ' = 6,148,989 5,203,5;;
- ‘ \ 62,428,732 72,4174
Liab:hues dlrectly associated with the assets classnﬁed
as hcld for sate ) 13,156 23,432
“Total Cusrent Liabilities | 62,441,888 72,440,930
Noncurrent Liabilities ' "
L.ong-term debt - net of current portion (Note 11) 68,274,502 41,589,794
Cumuldtive redeemable preferred shares (Note'12) 2,107,819 2,107,819
Deferred income tax liabilities - net l 6,167,676 6,619,972
Other noncurrent liabilities 9,286,677 7,792,682
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 86,536,674 58,110,267
Total Liabilities 148,978,562 130,551,197
(Forward) S




September 34, 20088 Dccember 31, 2007

{Unaudited) (Aundited)
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent: (Note 13) _
Paid-up capital 12,856,988 12,856,988
Retained eamings ) ' 66,043,849 65,546,119
Other reserves (1,067,123) (906,817)
Treasury shares {721,848) (721,848)
77,111,866 76,774,442
Minority interest 20,321,481 22,608,306
Total Equity 97,433,347 09,382,748
| P246,411,909 £229,933,945

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

Quarters Ended September 30

Nine Months Ended September 30

‘ 2008 2007 2008 2007
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Sale of goods and services:
Foods . : P11,238,428 P9,172,428 P32.392,483 P27,481,008
_Air transportation ! 4,587,890 3,337,331 13,976,504 10,891,837
Telecommunications ! 2,793,008 2,088,555 7,717,934 6,068,524
Real estate and hotels ! 2,794,562 1,973,021 7,774,299 5,954,892
Petrochemicals 1 2,591,334 1,200,030 6,939,822 2,567,496
Interest income ! 794,393 1,023,462 2,590,063 3,413,415
Equity in pet income of associates and tl
joint ventures - ' ' 582,568 270,477 1,490,433 925,395
Other revenue (1,497,465) 775,318 (4,106,523) 4,641,930
: ' 23,884,718 19,840,622 68,775,015 61,944,497
Expenses ' ;
Cost of sales and services ' 17,084,623 11,745,080 46,675,113 33,422,219
General and administrative expenses - I 5,505,594 4,616,227 16,352,458 14,589,175
Impairment losses and others 144,175 26,751 239,940 179,954
Financing costs and other charges ' , 1,333,274 1,592,462 4,482,995 5,283,631
I 24,067,666 17,980,520 67,750,506 53,474,979
Income Before Income Tax (182,948) 1,860,102 1,024,509 8,469,518
Provision for Income Tax g 164,454 378,943 530,693 1,646,945
INCOME (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX FROM
_ CONTINUING OPERATIONS (347,402) 1,481,159 493,816 6,822,573
INCOME (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 22,599 (2,734) 100,900 (324,868)
NET INCOME (P324,803) Pt,478,425 P594,716 6,497,705
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the parent (P458,019) PI1,163,341 P701,646 P5,071,000
Minority interest 133,216 315,084 (106,930) 1,426,705
Sy P , (P324,803) P1,478,425 P594,716 P6,497,705
: E.ARNIN SPER'SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
" EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic/diluted earnings per share (Note 14) (P0.07) PO.17 £0.10 P0.75
Basic/diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations (P0.07) P0.17 P0.09 P0.79

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. zI\ND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES

. IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUIJFY
(Tn. Thousands)
|

t
i

Nine Months Ended September 30

2008 2007
i
Capital stock - P1 par value
Authorized:
Common - 12,850,800,000 shanlas
Preferred - 2,000,000,000 shares
Issued:

Common - 6,895,273,657 shares 16,895,274 P6,895,274
Additional paid-in capital 5,961,714 5,961,714
Other reserves {1,067,123) (33,454)
Retained earnings

Beginning 65,546,119 57,136,033

Net income 701,646 5,071,000

Cash dividends:

- Common stock (P0.03 a share in 2008 and 2007) {203,916) (203,916)

End . 66,043,849 62,003,117
Treasury stock - at cost (721,848) {721,848)

71,111,866 74,104,803

_ Attributable to minority interest 20,321,481 21,253,750

' P97,433,347 P95,358,553

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statenients.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOL[DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)
Nine Months Ended September 30
2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax from continuing operations P1,024,509 P8,469,518
Income (loss) before income tax from discontinued operations 100,900 - (324,868)
Adjustments for: '
Depreciation and amortization 7,206,714 6,774,311
" Interest expense 4,258,223 4,985,600
Interest income (2,590,063) (3,413,415)
Equity in net income of associates and joint ventures (1,490,433) (925,395)
Provisions for impairment losses on receivables and other financial assets 239,940 179,954
Foreign exchange loss (gain) - net 3,061,367 (3,797,625)
Market valuation loss (gain) on derivative instruments 986,527 (6,651}
Market valuation loss {gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss 1,568,880 (444,063)
Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 3,964 (53,682)
Operating income before changes in operating accounts 14,370,528 11,443,684
_ Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (1,940,794) (1,703,497)
_ Inventories (2,040,088) (1,718,603)
Other current assets 579,942 (1,696,423)
Increase (decrease) in: ‘
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 860,810 (4,059,685)
Other current liabilities 124,297 1,855,237
Net cash generateﬂ from operations 11,954,695 4,120,713
Interest received 2,808,927 3,464,661
interest paid (4,519,222) (5,062,305)
Income taxes paid (396,010) (579,733)
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,848,390 1,943,336
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease (mcrease) in;
“Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt and loss 837,271 2,329,231
« ;Available-for-sale investments 30,822 {311,231)
¥Held-to-maturity investments. l (23,068) 176,978
» Other noncurrent assets l (2,066,903) (1,253,876)
Biological assets \ . (263,802) {120,163}
Investments in associates and joint ventures (4,527,750) 498,669
Property, plant and equipment - net- (18,844,014) (14,522,363)
Investment propertics - net I (2,213,981) (5,392,283)
Net cash used in investing activities ! (27,071,425) (18,595,038)

(Forward)
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Nine Mouths Ended Septesber 30

2008 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in:

Short-term debt 5,627,976 2,310,628

Long-term debt 7,348,360 763,092

Other noncurrent liabilities . 1,185,478 1,891,927

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries (2,179,894) (1,112,617
Dividends paid (203,916) (203,916)
Net cash provided by financing activities | 11,778,004 3,649,114
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ;;!LND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,445,031) (13,002,588)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 13,317,839 24,834,015
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

‘AT END OF PERIOD P7,872,808 Pl1,831,427

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
) % -

!
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information i
JG Summit Holdmgs Inc. (l\ie Parent Company) is incorporated in the Republic of the

Philippines. The registered ofﬁce address of the Parent Company is 43rd Floor Robinsons-
Equitable Tower, ADB Avenue corner Poveda Road, Pasig City.

The Parent Company is the Holding company of the JG Summit Group (the Group), with
principal business interests in branded consumer foods, agro-industrial and commodity food

products, real property development, hotels, banking and financial services, telecommunications,
petrochemicals, air lransponktion and power generation.

The Group conducts business throughout the Philippines, but primarily in and around Metro
Manila where it is based. The Group also has branded food businesses in the People s Republic of

China and in the Association of Southeast Asian Nations region, and aan interest in a property
development business in Singapore.

The principal activities of the Group are further described in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. .

ot =

-t ¥

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
available-for-sale (AFS) investments and derivative financial instruments that have been measured

at fair value, and biological assets and agricultural produce that have been measured at fair value
less estimated point-of-sale costs.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Philippine Peso. The
functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company and its Philippine subsidiaries
(except certain consolidated foreign subsidiaries) is the Philippine Peso (see further discussion
under Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions section).

.
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and

the following companies:

Country of Percentage of Ownership
Companies Incorporation 2008 ° 2007
: 1
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Food
Universal Robina Corporation (URC)
and Subsidiaries L Philippines* 61.14 0.02 59.16 0.02
Air Transportation
Cebu Air, Inc. (CAT) -do- 100.60 100.00
CP Air Holdings, Inc. (CPAHI) -do- 100.00 100.00
Real Estate and Hotels
Rebinsons Land Corporation and
Substdiaries (RLC) -do- 60.01 60.01
Adia Development and Management
Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
Petrochemicals
JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation
(JGSFPC) -do- 100,00 §2.28
JG Summit Olefins Corporation -do- 100.00 -
Telecommunications
Digital Telecommunications Phils,, Inc,
{Digitel) and Subsidiarics -do- 47.45 2.36 4745 235
JG Summit Capital Services Corp.
(JGSCSCy
and Subsidiaries -do- 100.00 100.00
JG Summit (Cayman), Ltd. (JGSCL)  Cayman Island 100.00 100.00
JG Summit Philippines Ltd. (JGSPL) British
and Subsidiaries Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00
JG Summit Litmited (JGSL) -do- 100.00 100.00
Textiles
Westpoint Industrial Mills Corporation Philippines 100.00 100.00
Litton Mills, Inc. (LMD -do- 100.00 100.00
Supplementary Businesses
Cebu Pacific Manufacturing
Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
Hello Snack Foods Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
IG Cement Corporation -do- 100.00 100.60
Savannah Industrial Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
Terai Industrial Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
- Unicon Insurance Biokers Corporation -do- 100.00 100.00
Premiere Printing Company, Inc. | -do- 100.00 100.00

* ° Certain URC subsidiaries are located in other countries, such as China, Vietnam, Thailand, Alalaysia, eic.
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Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, prescribes
guidance on the consolidation of special purpose entities (SPE). Under SIC 12, an SPE should be
consolidated when the substance of the relationship between a certain company and the SPE
indicates that the SPE is controlled by the company. Control over an entity may exist even in
cases where an enterprise owns little or none of the SPE’s equaty, such as when an eatity retains
majority of the residual risks related to the SPE or its assets in order to obtain benefits from its
activities. In accordance with SIC 12, the Group’s consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Cebu Aircrafl Leasing Limited (CALL) and IBON Leasing Limited (ILL). CALL and
ILL are SPEs in which the Group does not have equity interest. CALL and ILL acquired the

passenger aircraft for lease to CAI under a finance lease arrangement and funded the acquisitions
through long-term debt.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. All significant intercompany transactions

and balances, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in
the consolidation,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Under
PFRS, it is acceptable to use, for consolidation purposes, the financial statements of subsidiaries
for fiscal periods differing from that of the Parent Company if the difference is not more than three
(3) months. Subsidiaries in the following businesses have a financial year-end of September 30:

food, textiles, real estate and hotels, petrochemicals and substantially all subsidiaries in
supplementary businesses.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Idenfifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest.

Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities represents goodwill. Any excess of

~ the Group s interest in the nét fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities over the cost of business combmatlon is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income on the date of acqmsmon

L Minority interests représent ﬂlc portion of income or loss and net assets not held by the Group and

are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in the
consolidated balance sheet, separately from the parent shareholders’ equity. Acquisitions of

_minority interests are accounted for using the parent entity extension method, whereby, the

difference between the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill,
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years, except
for the adoption of a new accounting standard, amendments to accounting standards and certain
Philippine Interpretations that are discussed below. The adoption of the new and amended
standards, as well as the Philippine Interpretations, did not have any effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. They did, however, give rise to additiona! disclosures.

¢ Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the

consolidated financial statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital.

 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, Scope of PFRS 2

This Philippine Interpretation requires PFRS 2 to be applied to any arrangements in which the
entity cannot identify specifically some or all of the goods received, in particular where equity
instruments are issued for consideration which appears to be less than fair value. This

Philippine Interpretation did not have any effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

i
- i|
¢ Philippine Interpretation!IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
|
This Philippine Interpretation prohibits the reversal of impairment loss on goodwill and AFS
equity investments recognized in the interim financial reports even if impairment is no longer

~present at the annual balance sheet date. The adoption of this Philippine Interpretation did not
have any effect on the cansolidated financial statements of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measored. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods | .
Revenue from sale of goods Is recognized upon delivery, when the significant risks and rewards of

. ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of

any trade discounts, prompt payment discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of telecomnumications services \ ‘
Revenue from telecommunications services includes the value of all telecommunications services
provided, net of free usage allocations and discounts. Revenue is recognized when earned, .jmd are
net of the share of other foreign and local carriers and content providers, if any, under existing
correspondence and interconnection and settlement agreements,
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Revenue is stated at amounts billed or invoiced and accrued to subscribers or other carriers and
content providers, taking into consideration the bill cycle cut-off (for postpaid subscribers), and

charged against preloaded airtime value (for prepaid subscribers), and excludes valued-added tax
{VAT) and overseas communication tax.

1
The Group’s service revenuic, includes the revenue earned from subscribers and traffic. With.
respect to revenue earned fr?m subscribers, revenue principally consists of: (1) per minute airtime
and toll fees for local, domestic and international long distance calls in excess of free call

’ ' . | . . .
-+ allocatior, less prepaid reload discounts and interconnection fees; (2) revenue from value-added

services such as short messaging services (SMS) in excess of free SMS and multimedia messaging

- - services (MMS), content downloading and infotext services, net of payoul to other foreign and

local carriers and content providers; (3) inbound revenue from other carriers which terminate their
calls to the Group’s network; (4) revenue from international roaming services; (5) fixed monthly
service fees (for postpaid wifeless subscribers) and prepaid subscription fees for discounted

_promotional calls and SMS; and (6) proceeds from sale of phone kits, subscribers’ identification
. module (5IM) packs and other phone accessories.

t
Postpaid service arrangements include fixed monthly charges which are recognized over the
subscription period on a pro-rata basis. Telecommunications services provided to postpaid
subscribers are billed throughout the month according to the billing cycles of subscribers. Asa

_result of billing cycle cut-off, service revenue earned but not yet billed at end of month are

estimated and accrued. These estimates are based on actual usage less estimated free usage using
a historical ratio of free over billable usage.

|
Proceeds from sale of prepaid cards are initially recognized as unearned revenue (recorded under
Other Current Liabilities account in the consolidated balance sheet). Revenue is realized upon
actual usage of the airtime value of the card, net of free service allocation. The unused value of
prepaid cards is likewise recognized as revenue upon expiration. Interconnection fees and charges
arising from the actual usage of prepaid cards are recorded as incurred.

With respect to revenue earned from connecting carriers/traffic, inbound revenue and outbound
charges are based on agreed transit and termination rates with other foreign and local carriers and
content providers. Inbound revenue represents settlements received for traffic originating from
telecommunications providers that are sent through the Group’s network, while outbound charges
represent settlements to telecommunications providers for traffic originating from the Group’s
network and settlements to providers for contents downloaded by subscribers, Both the inbound
revenue and outbound charges are accrued based on actual volume of traffic monitored by the
Group from the switch. Adjustments are made to the accrued amount for discrepancies between
the traffic volume per the Group’s records and per records of other carriers. The adjustments are
recognized as these are determined and are mutually agreed-upon by the parties. Uncollected
inbound revenue are shown under Receivables - net account in the consolidated batance sheet,
while unpaid outbound charges are shawn under Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses account
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Proceeds from sale of phonekits and STM cards/packs received from certain mobile subscribers are
recognized upon actual receipts, and are included under Other Revenue account in the
consolidated statement of income.
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Rendering of air transportation services

Passenger ticket and cargo waybill sales are initially recorded as unearned revenue (included

under Other Current Liabilities account in the consolidated balance sheet) until recognized as

Revenue in the consolidated statement of income, when the transportation service is rendered.
| :

The related commission is recognized as expense in the same period when the transportation

service is provided. The amount of commission not yet recognized as expense is recorded as a

prepayment under Other Clu;rent Assets account in the consolidated balance sheet,

Revenue from in-flight sales and other services are recognized when the goods are delivered or the
services are carried out.

Sale of real estate

Real estate sales are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method when: (a) equitable
interest and/or legal title to the subject properties is transferred to the buyer; (b) the seller is
obliged to perform significant acts after the subject properties are sold; (c) the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably; (d) the costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably; and
{e) it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity. Under this method, revenue is
recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled, measured principally on the basis of the
estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract work.

If any of the criteria under the percentage-of-completion method is not met, the deposit method is

- applied until all the conditions for recording a sale are met. Pending recognition of sale, cash

received from buyers are recorded as customers’ deposits which are included under Other Current

_ Liabilities account in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue from hotel operations are recognized when services are rendered. Revenue from
banquets and other special events are recognized when the events take place.

Dividend income .
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established.

Rent income

The Group leases certain commercial real estate properties to others under an operating lease
arrangement. Rental income on leased properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease tenn, or based on a certain percentage of the gross revenue of the tenants, as provided under

the terms of the lease contract. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
they are earned. !

Interest income .
Interest is recognized as it accrues (using the effective interest rate method under which interest

_ income is recognized at the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).
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Other fees

Loan fees that are directly relaied to the acquisition and origination of loans are amortized using
the effective interest rate method over the term of the receivable. Fees related to the
administration and servicing of loans are recognized as revenue as the services are rendered.

Service charges and penalties are recognized only upon collection or are accrued when there is
reasonable degree of certainty as to its collectibility.

Cash and Cagh Equivalents

- Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of

three (3) months or less from dates of placement, and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

'Recoggition of Financial Instruments

- Date of recognition

Financial instruments within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and

" Measurement, are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet, when the Group becomes a party

10 the contractnal provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets (hat require

. delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace

are recognized using the settlement date accounting. '

Initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Except for financial instruments
designated at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs. The
Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-
to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables. The Group
classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether
they are quoted in an active market, Management determines the category of its investments at

initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every

reporting date. 1

|
Determination of fair value |
The fair value for financial, i:nstrumcnts traded in active markets at balance sheet date is based on
their quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. When current bid and ask prices are
not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as
long as there has not been a Figniﬁcant change in economic circumstances, since the time of the
transaction.

"For all other financial instruments not listed in an active markel, the fair valuc is determined by

using appropriate valuation iechniques. Valuation techniques include net present vatue

T techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options

pricing models and other relfrvant valuation models, :
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Day 1 profit or loss
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value based on other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit or loss) in the consolidated statement
of income. In cases where variables used are made of data which is not observable, the difference
between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of
income when the inputs became observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each

. I, . -
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 profit or loss
amount.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets and financial liabilities

held for trading purposes, derivative instruments or those designated upon initial recognition when
any of the following criteria are met:

» the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would

otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

o the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
which are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or

1
¢ the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative

does not significantly mtl)dify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately Irecorded.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are reflected in the consolidated statement of income. Interest
earned or incurred is recorded in interest income or expense, respectively, while dividend income
is recorded in other operating income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right of

- the payment has been established.

l
The Group’s financial assets at FVPL consist of private bonds, government securities, equity

- securities and derivative instruments.

e
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Derivatives recorded at FVPL

"The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries are counterparties to derivative contracts, such as

currency forwards, cross currency swaps, credit default swaps, equity options, currency options
and commodity options. These derivatives are entered into as a means of reducing or managing
their respective foreign exchange and interest rate exposures, as well as for trading purposes.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value on the date at which the
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Any gains or

losses arising from changes in fair values of derivatives (except those accounted for as accounting
hedges) are taken directly to the consolidated statement of income. Derivatives are carried as

assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified primarily as either: (a) a hedge of the
fair value of an asset, liability or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or (b) a hedge of the
exposure to variability in cath flows attributable to an asset'or liability or a forecasted transaction

(cash flow hedge). In 2008 :aild 2007, the Group did not apply hedge accounting treatment for its
derivative transactions.

The fair values of the Group}"s derivative instruments are calculated by using certain standard
valuation methodologies and quotes obtained from third parties. '

Embedded derivatives ,

Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from their host contracts, when the following conditions are
met: (a) the entire hybrid contracts (composed of both the host contract and the embedded
derivative) are not accounted for as financial assets at FVPL; (b) when their economic risks and
characteristics are not closel%r related to those of their respective host contracts; and (c) a separate

instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative,

|
The Group has certain derivatives that are embedded in nronfinancial host contracts (such as
purchase orders, network contracts and service agreements). These embedded derivatives include
foreign currency denominated derivatives in purchase orders and certain network and service

agreements. The fair value changes are recognized directly to the consolidated statement of
income.

HTM investments

HTM investments are quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities which the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the
entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS investments. After initial measurement,

_these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method, less any impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any

-discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income, when the HTM

investments are derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The
effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated HTM investments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

The Group’s HTM investments consist of government securities, treasury notes and private bonds.

‘Loans and receivables

-, Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and

fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate :'nethod, tess
any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into accom'n any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction costs. The amortization is included under Interest Income account in the consolidated
statement of income. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of incc.)mc_
when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process. |
' ' '
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This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group’s trade and other receivables, and cerfain
refundable security deposits.
!

AFS investments

AFS investments are those nonderivative investments which are designated as such or do not
qualify to be classified as designated as financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL, HTM
investments or loans and receivables. They are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold
in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the consolidated statement of income.
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded,

net of tax, from reported earnings and are reported under Other Reserves account in the Equity
section of the consolidated balance sheet. '

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest eamed on holding AFS investments
are reported as interest income using the effective interest rate. Where the Group holds move
than one (1) investment in the same security these are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in, first-
out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS investments are reported as interest income using the
effective interest rate. Dividends earned on holding AFS investments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income, when the right to receive payment has been established.

The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized under Impairment Losses
and Others account in the consolidated statement of income.

e

The Group’s AFS investments consist of government securities, private bonds and equity
securities.

Other financial liabilities
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL are classified
- as other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the
. Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
*_satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial

. asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments

. that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity
"component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the
amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

_Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

‘This accounting pblicy applies primarily to the Group’s short-term and 10ng-t§r.m debt, accounts
payable and accrued expensEs and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than

liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable and pension
liabilities). - \

27




/,
-,

Pon -

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Debt and Equity
A financial instrument is classitied as debt, if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

¢ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group; or

satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial }iability.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount, after

deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determmcd as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

Impairment of Financial Assn':ts :

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
(1} or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (gr events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include lndlcatlons that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial dlfﬁculty, defanlt or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization, and where observable
data indicate that there is méasurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defauls.

Financial assets carried at timomzed cost

If there is objective evidencd that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost
(i.e. receivables) has been mcurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. The loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The
asset, together with the associated allowance accounts, is written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery. |

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for fi nancial
assets that are not lndurldually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of

1mpalrment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to ll?e_
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor’s abality
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assels
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that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognized are not included in a collective assessiment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversat of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

The Group performs a regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify
accounts with objective evidence of impairment and provide the appropriate allowance for
impairment loss. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and collective

assessment approaches, with the impairment loss being detenmined for each risk grouping
identified by the Group.

|

HTM investments :

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment; loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asseth carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized
based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. The HTM investments, together with the
associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collaterals have been realized. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance
account, If a future write off is later recovered, any amounts formerly charged will be credited to
the Impairment Losses and Others account in the consolidated statement of income.

AFS investments

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In case of equity investments classified as AFS
investments, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss which is
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the consolidated statement of

" income is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
income. Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the
original effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded undefr
Intérest Income account i the consolidated statement of income. If, in subsequent year, the fair
value of a debt instrument increases, and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of income, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of income.

—-i
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Derecognition of Financial Instruments
) !

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where appllcable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecogmzcd where:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
» the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or ‘ .
i
»

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and cither (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and retained control of the

asset, or {b) has neither transferred nor retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has
transferred the control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liabi_lity
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in-the consolidated statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the

" consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognized amouhts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability s:multancously This is not generally the case with master netting agreements;
thus, thc rc]ated assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated balance sheet.

Inventories 7 ¥

Inventories, mclud" ing goods-in-process, are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value
‘(NRV). NRV is thc estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and 1lie estimated costs necessary to make the sale. NRV for materials, spare parts

and other supplies represenls the related replacement costs.
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Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows: '

Finished goods, work-in-process, raw materials and packaging materials
Cost is determined using the average method. Finished goods and work-in-process include direct

materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overhead costs based on actual goods
processed and produced, but excluding borrowing costs.

Subdivision land and condominium and residential units for sale
Subdivision land, condominium and residential units for sale are carried at the lower of cost or
NRV. Cost includes costs incurred for development and improvement of the propenties and

interest costs on loans directly attributable to the projects which were capitalized during
construction.

Materials in-transit
Cost is determined using the specific identification basis.

Spare parts and other supplies
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Assets Held for Sale

The Group classifies assets as held for sale (disposal group) when their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be
the case, the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly probable.
For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate leve! of management must be committed to a
plan to sell the asset and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have
been initiated. Furthermore, the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one (1) year from the date of classification.

| . , S
-The related results of operations and cash flows of the disposal group that qualify as discontinued

operation are separated from the results of those that would be recovered principally through
continuing use, and prior years’ consolidated statement of income and consolidated statement of
cash flows are represented. Results of operations and cash flows of the disposal group that qualify
as discontinued operations are presented in the consolidated statement of income and consolidated
statement of cash flows as items associated with discontinued operations.

Irivestment Properties : o
Investment properties consist of properties that are held 1o earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, and those which are not occupied by entities in the Group. Investment properties, except
for land, are carried st cost Iéss accumulated depreciation and less impairment loss, if any. Lnnd is
carried at cost less impairmt';nt loss, if any. The carrying amount includes the cost qf .replagmg
part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria
are met, and excludes the cast of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.

L)
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The Group’s investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives (EUL) as follows:

Land improvements 10 years

Buildings and building improvements 10 to 20 years
Theater furniture and equipment

5 years
Investment properties are derecagnized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from their disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment

properties are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or
disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or by the end of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when,

and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.

For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property to inventories, the deemed
cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. 1f the
property occupied by the Group as an owuer-occuplcd property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under Property, Plant
and Equipment account up to the date of change in use. When the Group completes the
construction or development of a self-constructed investment property, any difference between the
fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognized in the

. consolidated statement of i mcome

I,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture

The Group also has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities. A joint venture
is a contractual arrangement whereby two (2) or more parties undertake an economic activily that
is subject to joint control, and a jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that invotves the
establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using l!le equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investments in associates and jomt ventures
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of net assets of the associates and joint ventures. The consolidated statement of income
reflects the share of the results of operations of tlie associates and joint ventures. Where there has
been a change recognized d:réctly in the investees’ equity, the Group recognizes its share of any
changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated starement of changes in equity.

Profits and losses arising from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to
the extent of the interest in the associates and joint ventures.

-
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The Group’s investments in certain associates and joint ventures include goodwill on acquisition,
less any impairment in value. Goodwill relating to an associate or joint venture is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and ig not amortized,

|

The investee companies’ accounting policies conform to those used by the Greoup for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and impairment loss, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises of its purchase pnce and any cost attributable in bringing the asset to its intended
location and working condition. Cost also includes: (a) interest and other financing charges on
borrowed funds used to finance the acquisition of property, plant and equipment to the extent
incurred during the period of installation and construction; and (b) asset retirement obligation

{ARO) relating to property, plant and equipment installed/constructed on leased properties or
leased aircraft. |

|
Land is stated at cost, less any impairment in value,

Subsequent costs are capitalized as part of the Property, Plant and Equipment account, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged against

current operations as incurred.
'

Foreign exchange differentials arising from the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are
charged against current operations and are no longer capitalized.

\
Construction in-progress are transferred to the retated Property, Plant and Equipment account
when the construction or installation and related activities necessary to prepare the property, plant

and equipment for their intended use are completed, and the property, plant and equipment are
ready for service,

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment commence, once the property,
plant and equipment are available for use and are computed using the straight-line method over the
EUL of the assets, regardless of utilization.

i
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The EUL of property, plant Ea'nd equipment of the Group follow:
i
Land improvements : 10 to 40 years
Building and improvements 10 to 50 years
Machinery and equipmeént 4 10 50 years
Telecommunications eqluipment:
Tower

! 15 years

Switch _ 10 to 15 years

Outside plant facilities 10 to 20 years

©  Distribution dropwires 5 years

Cellular facilities and others 3 to 10 years
Investments in cable facilities : 15 years .

Assets under lease ! IS years

Passenger aircraft* 15 years

Other flight equipment : 5 years

Transportation, furnishing and other equipment 3 to 5 years

* With 15% residual value after fifteen (15) years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their EUL or the corresponding lease
terms.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated statement of income,
in the year the item is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

ARO

The Group is legally required under various lease contracts to restore certain leased properties and
leased aircraft to their original condition and to bear the cost of any dismantling and deinstallation
at the end of the contract period. The Group recognizes the present value of these costs, and
depreciates such on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the related property, plant and equipment
or the coniract period, whichever is shorter, or written off as a result of impairment of the related
Praperty, Plant and Equipment account.

Goodwill
"Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of identifiable net
. assets of the investee at the date of acquisition which is not identifiable to specific assets.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination from the acquisition date is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is so allocated: |

1

. » represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and
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s is not larger than a segment based on either the Group’s primary or secondary reporting format
determined in accordance with PAS 14, Segment Reporting.

Fo!lom'ng- initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, less any accumulated impairment loss,
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently, if events or changes in

circutnstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired (see further discussion under
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets).

[f the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and conftingent
!1ah|htzes‘exceeds the costs of the business combination, the acquirer shall recognize immediatety
in the consolidated statement of income any excess remaining afier reassessment.

Biological Assets

The biological assets of the Group are divided into two (2) major categories with sub-categories as
follows:

Swine livestock

Breeders (livestock bearer)

- Sucklings (breeders’ offspring)

- Weanlings (comes from sucklings intended to be breeders or to be
sold as falteners)

- Fatteners/finishers {comes from weanlings unfit to become breeders;

intended for the production of meat)

Poultry livestock

Breeders (livestock bearer)
- Chicks (breeders’ offspring intended to be sold as breeders)

A biological asset shall be measured on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date at its fair
value less estimated point-of-sale costs, except for a biological asset where fair value is not clearly
determinable. Agricultural produce harvested from an entity’s biological assets shall be measured
at its fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. '

i

The Group is unable to measure fair values reliably for its poultry livestock breeders in the
absence of: (a) an available market determined prices or values; and (b) alternative estimates of
fair values that are determined to be clearly reliable; thus, these biological assets are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impainment loss, if any. However, once the fair values
become reliably measurable, the Group measures these biological assets at their fair values less

estimated point-of-sale costs.

Agricultural produce is the harvested product of the Group’s biological asset. A harvest occurs
when agricultural produce is:_eilher detached from the bearer biological asset or when the asset’s
life processes of the agricultlliral produce ceases. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of
agricuitural produce at fair value less estimated point-of-sale cost shall be included in the
consolidated statement of income in the period in which it arises. The agricultural produce in
swine livestock is the suckling that transforms into weanling then into fatteners/finishers, while
the agricultural produce in poultry livestock is the hatched chick.

Biological assets at cost '

The cost of an item of biological asset comprises its purchase price and any costs attributable in
bringing the biological asset to its location and conditions intended by management.

i
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the EUL of the biological assets,
regardless of uotilization. The EUL of biological assets is reviewed annually based on expected
utilization as anchored on business plans and strategies that considers market behavior to ensure
that the period of depreciation is consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of biological assets, The EUL of biological assets ranges from two (2) to three (3) years.

The carrying values of biological assets are reviewed for impairment, when events or changes in

the circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable (see further discussion
under Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets).

Biological assets carried at fuir values less estimated point-of-sale costs

Swine weanlings and fatteners/finishers are measured at their fair values less point-of-sale costs.
The fair values are determined based on current market prices of livestock of similar age, breed
and genetic merit. Point-of-sale costs include commissions to brokers and dealers, nonrefundable

transfer taxes and duties. Point-of-sale costs exclude transport and other costs necessary (o get the
biological assets to the market. '

A gain or loss on initial recognition of a biological asset at fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs and from a change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of a biological asset is
included in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which it arises.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and
impairment loss, if any. The useful lives of intangible assets with finite life are assessed at the
individual asset level. Intangible assets with finite life are amortized over their uscful lives.
Periods and method of amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed
annually or earlier when an indicator of impairment exists.

- The EUL of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite !ives are amortized over the EUL and assessed for impairment,
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization jnethod for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year-end. Changes in the EUL or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

[
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually

" or at the cash-generating unit level (see further discussion under Impairment of Nonfinancial

Assets). Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful lifc of an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment

continues to be supportable. 1f not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.
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Costs incurred to acquire cmlnputer software (not an integral part of its related hardware) and bring
it to its intended use are capitalized as intangible assets. Costs directly associated with the
development of identifiable computer software that generate expected future benefits to the Group
are recognized as intangible asseis. All other costs ol developing and maintaining computer
software programs are recognized as expense when incurred.

A gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of the policies aipplied to the Group’s intangible assets follow:

! Trademarks
. | Nestlé Water Acesfood
Technology Branch Philippines, Network DMte.
- Lidenses Licenses  Software Costs Inc, Itd.
EUL Finite (12 to
13.75 years) Indefinite  Finite (5 years)  Finite {4 years) Indefinite
Amortization Amortized on a ‘Amortized ona
method used straight-limﬂ1 basis straight-line basis
over the period No over the period  Amortized on a No

of the license amortization

of the license straight-line basis amortization

Internally generated

or acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired ~ Acquired

i

Deferred Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs
Subscriber acquisition costs primarily include handset and phounekit subsidies. Handset and

_phonekit subsidies represent the difference between the cost of handsets, accessories and SIM
cards (included under Cost of Sales account in the consolidated statement of income), and the
price offered to the subscribers (inctuded under Sale of Telecommunications Services account in
the consolidated statement of income). Retention costs for existing postpaid subscribers are in the
form of free handsets.

. Subscriber acquisition and retention costs pertaining to postpaid subscription are deferred and

- " amortized over the base contract period, which ranges from eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24)

“months from the date in which they are incurred. Deferred subscriber acquisition and retention

. costs are shown under Other Noncurrent Assets account in the consolidated balance shfaet. The
'+ related amortizations of subscriber acquisition costs are charged against current operations.

. The Group performs an overall realizability test, in order to support the deferral of the subscriber

acquisition costs. An overall realizability test is done by determining the minimum contractual
revenue after deduction of direct costs associated with the service contract over the base conlra_wl
period. Costs are deferred and amortized, if there is a nonrefundable contract or a reliab:le basis _
for estimating net cash inflows under a revenue-producing contract which exists to provide a basis
for recovery of incremental direct costs.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group’s property and equipment (see I\'Iote 1(?),
investment properties, investments in associates and joint ventures (see Note 14), and intangible
agsets with finite lives.
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assets may be impaired. Wlen an indicator of impairment exists or when an annual impatrment
testing for an asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the liigher of an asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) fair vatué less costs to
sell and its value in use, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) exceeds its récoverable
amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its

The Group assesses at each Fporting date whether there is an indication that its nonfinancial

‘recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and thP1 risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit),

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized under Impairment Losses and Others
account in the consolidated statement of income.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the consolidated statement of income. After such a reversal, the depreciation expense is adjusted
in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining life.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill

" Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit

(or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units} is less than the carrying amount to
which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognized. Where goodwill forms part
of a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit are disposed of, the goo@wnll associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative fair values of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Biolog:ca! assels at cost
The carrying values of biological assets are reviewed for |mpa1rment when events or clianges in
the circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

i
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating level, as appropriate.

Investiments in associates and joint ventures

After a‘plplication of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
an adfintlonal impairment loss of the Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are
impaired. Ifthis is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the

difference between the fair value of the associate and the acquisition cost and recognizes the
amount in the consolidated statement of income.

Short-term and Long-term Debt

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received,
less directly attributable debt issuance costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

Gains and losses are recognized in net profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs were amortized using the effective interest method and unamortized debt
issuance costs are offset against the related carrying value of the loan in the balance sheet. When
a loan is paid, the related unamortized debt issuance costs at the date of repayment are charged
against current operations (see accounting policy on Financial Instruments),

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares that exhibit characteristics of a liability are recognized as
a liability in the consolidated balance sheet. The corresponding dividends on those shares are
charged as interest expense in the consolidated statement of income. Upon issuance, cumulative
redeemable preferred shares are carried as a noncurrent liability on the amortized cost basis until
extinguished on redemption.

Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recorded at cost and are presented as a deduction from equity. When the
shares are retired, the capital stock account is reduced by its par value. The excess of cost over par
value upon retirement is deﬂited to the following accounts in the order given: (a) additional paid-in
capital to the extent of the specific or average additional paid-in capital when the shares were
issued, and (b) retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.c. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
-embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is
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material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessmeat of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as an interest expense under F inancing Costs and Other Charges
account in the consolidated statement of income, Where the Group expects a provision 1o be

reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Pension Costs

Pension cost is actuarially détermined using the projected unit credit method. This method reflects
services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions
concerning employees’ projected salaries. Actuarial valuations are conducted with sufficient
regularity, with option to accelerate when significant changes to underlying assumptions occur.
Pension cost includes current service cost, interest cost, expected return on any plan assets,
actuarial gains and losses and the effect of any curtailments or settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are credited to or charged against income when the net cumulative unrecognized

- actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous period exceed 10% of the higher of the present

value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. The excess
actuarial gains or losses are recognized over the average remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the plan. {

|
The asset or liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation as of the balance sheet date less
the fair value of plan asscts,ltogether with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not
yet recognized and the present value of the any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by an fndependent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future

cash outflows using risk-fre? interest rates that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.,

Share-Based Payment Transactions

Digitel has a stock option plan for the granting of nontransferable options to management and
employees of Digitel, whereby they are granted the option to purchase a fixed number of shares of

“stock at a stated price during a specified period. Options will be recorded at fair value at grant

date. . i ~

In 2007, the BOD of CAl approved the Executive Stock Option Plan (ESOP) and Employee Sllmrc
Purchase Plan (ESPP), in order to provide a mechanism for eligible employees of CAl to acquire
shares.

No options have been awarded pending approval of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) of the above-indicated plans. Once approved, options granted will be

accounted for under PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, and related Philippine Interpretations.
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Income Taxes

Current tax

. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted as of the balance sheet
date.
l"

: :

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary

~ differences, with certain exc'eptlons, at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and thelr carrymg gmounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabiliti s are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain
cxceptlons Deferred incom : tax assels are recognized for all deductible temporary differences
w:th certain excepuons, and' icarryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum
corporate income tax (MCITI') over regular corporate income tax and unused net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO), 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from
excess MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.

!
Deferred income tax assets are not recognized when they arise from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of transaction,
affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss. Deferred income tax liabilities
are not provided on nontaxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic
“subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures. With respect to investments in foreign
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax liabilities are
* recognized except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable futvre.

The carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date, and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be
recognized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to
~the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
~ have been enacted or substantively enacted as of balance sheet date.

\Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
consolidated statement of income.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legalty enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred taxes relate

to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date, and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a

right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one (1) of the
fotlowing applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangeinent;

b. arenewal option is exercised or an extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or

extension was initially included in the lease term;

¢. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for any of the scenarios above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for the second scenario.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and included
under Property, Plant and Equipment account with the corresponding liability to the lessor
included under Long-term Debt account. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant yate of interest on the

remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recorded directly to the consolidated
statement of income,

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the EUL of the assets or the respective
lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retairLs substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the

. consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor _

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of owners.h!p of the
assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on.the _
same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
they are eamed.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Interest and other finance costs incwred
during the: construction period on borrowings used to finance property development are capitalized
to the appropriate asset accounts. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the
activities to prepare the asset are in-progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being
incurred. The capitalization of these borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for sale or its intended use are complete. If the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded. Capitalized borrowing
cost is based on the applicable weighted average borrowing rate.

Interest expense on loans is recognized using the effective interest rate method over the term of the
loans.

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company and its Philippine subsidiaries is
~ the Philippine Peso.

Except for certain consolidated foreign subsidiaries within the URC group, the functional currency
of the other consolidated foreign subsidiaries is the US Dollar. The functional currencies of the
other consolidated foreign subsidiaries of URC include the Hong Kong Dollar, Chinese Yuan,

Singapore Dollar, Thai Baht, Malaysian Ringgit, Indonesian Rupiah and Vietnam Dong.
,i y p

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income, with the exception of differences on
foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity.
These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on lho']s"e borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Nonmonetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
as at the date of initial transaction. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated usiné the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
|
" As of reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into the
. presentation currency of the'Group at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, and
their respective statements gf income are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The exchange differe{%ces arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate '
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized
in equity relating to that particular foreign operation shall be recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

|
Earnings Per Share (EPS) _
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock (net income less,
dividends on preferred stock) by the weighted average number of common shares issued and
outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

43




Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent (after deducting interest on the convertible preferred shares, if any) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dusing the year plus the weighted

average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Segment Reporting E .

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according fo the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is

remote. Contingent assets aije not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

- Subsequent Events

Any post-period event that is not an adjusting event is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, when material.

|

Significant Accounting EsTmates and Judgments

: ’
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the

- Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

income and expenses and di%;closure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future
events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.
The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements, as
they become reasonably detclerminable. ' ‘

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. I

.+ Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has rpade the fotlowing
judgments, apart from those involving estimations which have the most significant effegt on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial instruments .
The Group exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, on
initial recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather

than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Tn addition, the Group classifies financial agsets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is
quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial assel is

quoted in an active market ig the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly

i
available, and whether thosel prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. |

'

Determination of fair values of financial instruments

The Group carries cerlain fmancnal assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use
of accounting estimates and Judgment While significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized different

valuation methodologies and assumptions. Any changes in fair value of these ﬁmncml assets and
liabilities would affect profi it and loss and equity.

Where the fair values of certain financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
internal valuation techniques using generally accepted market valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from obServable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimates are used in estabh:.hmg fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity
and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives.

Classification of HTM investments .

The Group classifies nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity as HTM investments. This classification requires significant judgment. In making this
judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than in certain specific circumstances, the
Group will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio as ATFS investments. Consequently, the
investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not at amortized cost.

Classification of leases

Management exercises judgment in determining whether substantially all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Group. Lease contracts, which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
items, are capitalized. Otherwise, they are considered as operating leases.

The Group has certain lease agreements covering certain telecommunications equipment and
passenger aircraft where the lease terms approximate the EUL of the assets, and provide for an
option to purchase or transfer of ownership at the end of the lease. These leases are classified by
the Group as finance leases.

The Group has also entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.

The Group has determined that it retains alt significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases,
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Distinction between fnvestmgm properties and owner-occipied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of
the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are

attributable not only to property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply
process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is hield to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goads or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for
as investment property, only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

Impairment of AFS equity investments

The Group treats AFS equity invesiments as impaired, when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. The Group
treats “significant’ generally as twenty (20) percent or more and ‘prolonged’ as greater than six (6)
months for quoted equity securities. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including

normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount
factors for unquoted equities

Valuation of unquoted equity investments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one (1) of the following: (a) recent
arm’s length market transactions; (b) current fair value of another instrument that is substantiaily
the same; (c) the expected cash flows discounted at current rates abplicable for terms with similar
terms and risk characteristics; or (d) other valuation models. The determination of cash flows and
discount factors for unquoted equity investments requires significant estimation. The Group
calibrates the valuation techniques and tests them for validity, by using prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or from other available observable market data.

l

Contingencies '

The Group is currently involved in certain legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counse!
handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The
Group currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material effect on the Group’s

. financial position. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially

- affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these
" proceedings.

'
!

... Estimates ' . '
.. The key assumptions conceming the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty at t}1e
- balance sheet date that have'a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,
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Revenue and cost recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies require use of estimates and assumptions that may affect
the réported amounts of revenue and costs.

* Rendering of telecommunications services

The Group’s postpaid telecommunications service arrangements include fixed monthly
charges which are recognized over the subscription period on a pro-rata basis. The Group
bills the postpaid subscribers throughout the month according to the bill cycles of subscribers.
As a result of the bill-cycle cut-off, service revenue earned but not yet billed at end of the
month are estimated and accrued. These estimates are based on actual usage less estimated

. free usage using historical ratio of free over billable usage. There is no assurance that the
Group’s use of estimates may not result in material adjustments in future periods.

s Sale of real estate

Selecting an appropriate revenue recognition method for a particular real estate sale
transaction requires certljinjudgment based on, among others: (a) buyer’s commitment on the
sale which may be ascertained through the significance of the buyer’s initial investment; and
(b) stage of completion of the project.

The Group’s revenue from real estate sales are recognized based on the percentage-of-
completion and the completion rate is measured principally on the basis of the estimated

completion of a physical proportion of the contract work, and by reference to the actual costs
incurred to date over the estimated total costs of the project.
Estimation of allowance for impairment loss on trade and other receivables
The Group maintains allowalpces for impairment loss on trade and other receivables at a level
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance
is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.
These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of relationship with the customer, the
customer’s payment behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of
the receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowances on a continuous

basis. The Group provides full allowance for trade and other receivables that it deems
uncollectible. r.

" The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made
different judgments or utilizgd different estimates. An increase in the allowance for impairment
loss on trade and other receivables would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease
current assets.

“ Determination of NRV of inventories
The Group, in determining the NRV, considers any adjustment necessary for obsolescence which
is generally provided 100% for nonmoving items for more than one (1) year. The Group adjusts

the cost of inventory to the recoverable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market
decline in the value of the recorded inventories. The Group reviews the classification of the

inventories and generally provides adjustments for recoverable values of new, actively sold and
slow-moving inventories by reference to prevailing values of the same inventories in the market.
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The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgments
were made or different estimates were utilized. An increase in inventory obsolescence and market
decline would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

Estimnation of ARO | .

The Group is legally required under various contracts to restore certain leased property and leased
aircraft to its original condition and to bear the costs of dismantling and deinstallation at the end of
the contract period, These costs are accrued based on an internal estimate which incorporates
‘estimates on amount of asset retirement costs, third party margins arid interest rates. The Group
recognizes present value of these costs as part of the balance of the related Property and
Equipment accounts, and depreciates such on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the related
asset. The present value of dismantling or restoration costs is computed based on an average
credit adjusted risk free rate of 10%. Assumptions used to compute ARO are to be reviewed and

updated annually.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgments
were made or different estlmates were utilized. An increase in ARO would increase recorded
operating expenses and increase noncurrent liabilities.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
The Group estimated the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and investment
properties based on the periad over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
EUL of property, plant and Qmpment and investment properties are reviewed at least annually
and are updated, if expectatlons differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear and
technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these assets. It is possible that future results of
operations could be matenally affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above. A 'reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment and
investment propertics would increase depreciation and amortization expense and decrease
noncurrent assets,

T .
Estimation of fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets
The fair values are determined based on current market prices of livestock of similar age, breed
and genetic merit. Point-of-sale costs include commissions to brokers and dealers, nonrefundable
transfer 1axes and duties. Point-of-sale costs exclude transport and other costs necessary to get the
biological assets to the market. The fair values are reviewed and updated, if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to changes brought by both physical change and price changes in the
market. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
these estimates brought about by the changes in factors mentioned.

« Estimation of pension and other benefits cosis

The determination of the obligation and cost of pension and other employee benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions
include, among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan assets and salary increase rates.
Actual results that differ from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future

periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such
future periods.
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While the Group believes lhlai the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences between actual experiences and assumptions may materially aftect the cost of
employee benefits and relale obligations.

|

The Group also estimates other employee benefits obligation and expense, including the cost of
paid leaves based on historical leave availments of employees, subject to the Group’s policy.

These estimates may vary depending on the future changes in salaries and actual experiences
during the year. f

Assessment of impairment of nonfinancial assets ;

The Group assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group
considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

. ' . .
* significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

s significant negative industry or economic trends.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consclidated financial statements.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income taxes at each balance sheet date and
reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
However, there is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient taxable income to allow all
or part of deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

. The Group has certain subsidiaries which enjoy the benefits of an income tax holiday (ITH). As

such, no deferred income tax assets were set up on certain gross deductible temporary differences
that are expected to reverse or expire within the ITH period.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash and ca_sh
equivalents and interest-bearing loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations and related capital expenditures. The Group has
various other financial assets and financial liabilities, such as trade receivables and payables which

- arise directly from its operations. The Parent Coppany and certain subsidiaries are counterparties

to derivative contracts, such 'fls currency forwards, cross currency swaps, credit default S}Waps,
equity options, currency options and commodity options. These derivatives are entered into as a
means of reducing or managing their respective foreign exchange and interest rate exposures, as
well as for trading purposes.
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The BODs of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries review and approve policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarized below, together with the related risk management
structure, '

Risk Management Structure

The Group’s risk management structure is closely aligned with that of the Parent Company.
The BOD of the Parent Company and the respective BODs of each subsidiary are uitimately
responsible for of the oversight of the Group’s risk management processes that involve
identifying, measuring, analyzing, monitoring and controlling risks.

The risk management framework encompasses environmental scanning, the identification and
assessment of business risks, development of risk management strategies, design and
implementation of risk management capabilities and appropriate responses, monitoring risks and

risk management performance, and identification of areas and opportunities for improvement in
the risk management process.

Each BOD has created the board-level Audit Committee (AC) to spearhead the managing and
monitoring of risks.

AC .

The AC shall assist the Group’s BOD in its fiduciary responsibility for the over-all effectiveness
of risk management systems, and both the internal and external audit functions of the Group.
Furthermore, it is also the AC’s purpose to lead in the general evaluation and to provide assistance
in the continuous improvements of risk management, control and governance processes.

The AC also aims to ensure that;

a. financial rcﬁorts comply with established internal policies and procedures, pertinent
accounting and audit standards and other regulatory requirements;

1
b. risks are properly identified, evaluated and managed, specifically in the areas of managing
credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and other risks, and crisis management.

c. audit activities of internal and external auditors are done based on plan, and deviations are
explained through the performance of direct interface functions with the internal and external
auditors; and

d. the Group’s BOD is properly assisted in the development of policies that would enhance the
risk management and control systems.

Enterprise Risk Managemenlt.'Group (ERMG)

To systematize the risk management within the Group, the ERMG was created to be primarily
responsible for the execution of the enterprise risk management framework. The ERMG’s main
concerns include: ! .

a. recommending of risk pJ)licics, strategies, principles, framework and limits;

b. managing fundamental risk issues and monitoring of relevant risk decisions;

f
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¢. providing support to management in implementing the risk policies and strategies; and

d. developing a risk awareness program.

Support groups have likewise been created to explicitly manage on a day-to-day basis specific
types of risks like trade receivables, supplier management, etc.

Compliance with the principles of good corporate governance is also one (1) of the objectives of
the BOD. To assist the BOD in achieving this purpose, the BOD has designated a Compliance
Officer who shall be responsible for monitoring the actual compliance with the provisions and
requirements of the Corporate Governance Manual and other requirements on good corporate
governance, identifying and monitoring control compliance risks, determining violations, and

recommending penalties on such infringements for further review and approval of the BOD,
among others.

Risk Management Policies

The main risks arising from the use of financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, price risk on biological assets, commodity price risk, equity price risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s policies for managing the aforementioned risks are summarized betow.

Foreign currency risk ;.
Foreign currency risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a foreign currency
other than the functional cur:rency in which they are measured.

[
The Group has transactional,currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales and purchases
in currencies other than the éntities’ functional currency. .

| . .
- The Group does not have any foreign currency hedging arrangements.

Credit risk
The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all

E _ customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
~ - addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s
" exposure to bad debts is not significant.

“a. Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk
t ' i ) \

e

Concentrationg arise whén a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
', activities or adtivities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features that
- would cquse theiy ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
ecorfomic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
Such credit risk’concentrations, if not properly managed, may cause significant losses that
could threaten {lie Group's financial strength and undermine public confidence.
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The Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a
diversified portfolio. In order to aveid excessive concentrations of risk, identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

b. Impairment assessment

i

The Group recognizes lmpalrment losses based on the results of the specific/individual and
collective assessment of its credit exposures. Impairment has taken place when there is a
presence of known difficulties in the servicing of cash flows by counterparnes infringement
of the original terms of thc contract has happened, or when there is an inability to pay
principal or interest overdue beyond a certain threshold. These and the other factors, either
singly or in tandem Wll]l1_0thﬁl‘ factors, constitute observable events and/or data that meet the
definition of an objective evidence of impairment.

The two methodologies j}pplied by the Group in assessing and measuring impairment include:
(1) specific/individual a 3sessment; and (2) collective assessment.

Under specific/individual assessment, the Group assesses each individually significant credit
exposure for any objective evidence of impairment, and where such evidence exists,
accordingly calculates the required impairment. Among the items and factors considered by
the Group when assessing and measuring specific impairment allowances are: (a) the timing of

" the expected cash flows;' (b) the projected receipts or expected cash flows; (c) the going
concern of the counterparty’s business; (d) the ability of the counterparty to repay its
obhgatlons during financial crises; (&) the availability of other sources of financial support;
and (f) the existing realizable value of collateral. The impairment allowances, if any, are
evaluated as the need arises, in view of favorable or unfavorable developments.

With regard to the collective assessment of impairment, allowances are assessed collectively
for losses on receivables that are not individually significant and for individually significant
receivables when there is no apparent evidence or not yet objective of individual impairment,
A particular portfolio is reviewed on a periodic basis, in order to determine its corresponding
appropriate allowances. The collective assessment evaluates and estimates the impairment of
the portfolio in its entirety even though there is no objective evidence of impairment on an
individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the
following deterministic information: (a) historical losses/write offs; (b) losses which are likely
to occur but has not yet occurred; and (c) the expected receipts and recoveries once impaired.

Liquidity risk
The Group seeks to manage its llqmdlty profile to be able to service its maturing debts and to

* finance capital requirements. The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

sufficient to finance operations. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group regularly
evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. It also continuously assesses conditions in the
financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund-raising activities. Fund-raising activities may
include bank loans and capital market issues both onshore and offshore.

Price risk on biological assets

The Group is exposed to risks arising from changes in prices of livestock and meat products. The
Group does not anticipate that livestock and meat products will decline significantly in the
foreseeable future and, therefore, has not entered into derivative or other contracts to manage the
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risk of a decline in market prices. The Group reviews its outlook for market prices regularly in
considering the need for active financial risk management.

Commodity price risk
The Grou.p entcrs.intp commodity derivatives to manage its price risks on fuel purchases.
Commodity hedging allows |stability in prices, thus offsetting the risk of volatile market

ﬂuc-tl_gations. Depending on the hedge cover, the price changes on the commodity derivative
positions are offset by higher or lower purchase costs on fuel.

Th_e'GrfJup manages its comr'nodity price risk through fuel surcharges which are approved by the
Philippine Civil Aeronautics Board (CAB), a fuel hedge that protects about the Group’s fuel usage

from volatile price fluctuations, and certain operational adjustments in order to conserve fuel use
in the way the aircraft is operated.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Parent
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ jong-term debt obligations. The Group’s policy is to manage its
interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt.

¥

Business Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets,

The industry segments where the Group operates are as follows:

s Food, agro-industrial and commodities businesses - manufacturing of snack foods, granulated
- coffee and pre-mixed coffee, chocolates, candies, biscuits, instant noodles, ice cream and
frozen novelties, pasta and tomato-based products and canned beans; raising of hog, chicken
and manufacturing and distribution of animal feeds, corn products and vegetable oil and the
synthesis of veterinary compound; and sugar milling and refining and flour milling.

*  Air transportation - air transport services, both domestic and international.

s Telecommunications - service provider of voice and data telecommunications services which
include international gateway facilities, a local exchange network and traditional business
services (fax, telex, leased lines and other value-added network products, value-added network
provider using electronics data interchange).

s Real estate and hotels - ownership, development, leasing and management of shopping malls
and retail developments; ownership and operation of prime hotels in major Philippine cities;
development, sale and leasing of office condominium space in office buildings and mixed use
developments including high rise residential condominiums; and development of land into

residential subdivisions .fl,m(l gale of subdivigion lots and residential houses and the provision of
customer financing for sales.

|
i
1
|
|
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» Petrochemicals - manufacturer of polyethylenc (PE) and polypropylene (PP), and other

industrial chemicals.

securities dealing; and offshore financial institutions.

®  Ofher supplementary businesses - insurance brokering

International capital and financial services - thrift banking operations; foreign exchange and

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differently from
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including
finance costs and revenue) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
operating segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a

manner similar to transactions with third parties.

The Group’s business segment information follows:

EXPENSES

REVENUES
2008 2007 2008 2007
Foods £32,392,483 P27481,008 P31,751,532 £24,704,369
* Air transportation 13,976,504 10,891,837 15,845,285 8,415,745
" Telecommunications 7,717,934 6,068,524 9.075,358 6,182,560
Real estate and hotels 7,774,299 5,954,892 6,506,083 4,863,736
Petrochemicals 6,939,822 2,567,496 7,269,889 3,116,073
Other Supplementary 40,744 36,044 34,262 29,122
Parent/International
capital and financial services 4,654,349 4,670,573 3,502,246 3,321,849
~ Adjustment/elimination (4,721,120 4274123 *(5,810,386) 5,915,175
68,775,015 61,944,497 68,174,269 56,548,629
. Discontinued operations
Textile : - 391,505 (100,900) 716,373
Printing \ - - - -
f R68,775,015  £62,336,002  P68,073,369 857,265,002
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NET INCOME SEGMENT ASSETS
2008 2007 2008 2007
Foods ‘ R640,951 B2,776,638  B61,166,763 R57,055,782
Air transportation (1,868,781) 2,476,092 28,509,480 23,910,164
Telecommunications (1,357,424) (114,036) 70,878,173 61,272,838
Real estate and hotels 1,268,216 1,091,156 38,936,592 35,907,379
Petrochemicals (330,067) (548,577 6,201,714 5,501,104
Other Supplementary 6,482 6,923 210,216 243,069
Parent/International '
capital and financial services 1,152,103 1,348,724 163,199,077 156,768,520
Adjustment/elimination 1,089,266 (1,641,052) (123,058,731) (118,628,344)
600,746 5,395,868 246,043,284 222,120,512
Discontinued operations
Textile , 100,900 (324,868) 368,625 2,899,586
Printing | - - 833
| R701,646 B5,071,000 PR246,411,909 B£225,021,201
|
i SEGMENT LIABILITIES NET ASSETS (EQUITY +
| MI)
2008 2007 2008 2007
Foods P27223,436 B22,777,791 33,943,327  P34,277,991
Air transportation | 25,633,255 20,502,586 2,876,225 3,407,578
Telecommunications ' 70,536,143 59,604,882 342,029 1,667,956
Real estate and hotels 5 16,986,171 15,241,653 21,950,422 20,665,727
_ Petrochemicals : 7,255,873 6,259,474 (1,054,159) (668,370)
Other Supplementary 150,378 169,106 59,838 73,963
Parent/International .
capital and financial services 92,956,268 88,335,499 70,242,809 68,433,020
Adjustment/elimination (91,776,118)  (84,146,230)  (31,282,613) (34,482,114)
148,965,406 128,744,761 97,077,878 93,375,751
Discontinued operations | '
Textile 13,156 902,561 355,469 1,997,295
Printing - 15,326 - (14,493)
B148,978,562 P129,662,648 197,433,347 P05,358,553

Cash and Cash Equivalents

. This account consists of’

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

(Unaudited) (Awdited)

Cash on hand and in banks P3,021,070 23,029,415
Cash cquivalents 4,851,738 10,288,424
P7,872,808 P13,317,839

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents, which
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Cash and cash equivalents oil, Robinsons Savings Bank Corporation (RSBC), a wholly owned
subsidiary of JG Summit Capital Services Corp., amounted to B1.5 billion and £2.8 biilion as of

_ June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Receivables

|
!
j
This account consists of: E :
! September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

: (Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade receivables L R12,213,371 R11,889,593
Finance receivables - net'of unearned discounts ‘ 6,649,855 5,366,934
Due from related parties! 2,640,586 2,661,334
Interest receivable 483,803 702,667
Other receivables f 1,691,811 1,284,162
‘ 23,679,426 21,904,740

Less allowance for impairment loss 4,471,208 4,390,002
' ' P19,208,218 P17,514,738

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are nonintierest-bearing and generally have thirty (30) to ninety (90) days terms.

Finance Receivables
Finance receivables represent receivables from customers of RSBC.

Aging Analysis
The aging analysis of the Group’s receivables as of September 30, 2008 follow:
OVER SIX
UP TO SIX MONTHS TO
TOTAL MONTHS ONE YEAR
Trade Receivables R12,213,371 B9,372,643 B2,840,728
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (4,471,208)  (2,176,642) (2,294,566)
Net Trade Receivables 7,742,163 7,196,001 . 546,162
Non-trade Receivables
Finance Receivables 6,649,855 6,649,855 -
Others : 4,816,200 3,490,562 1,325,638
11,466,055 10,140,417 1,325,638
B19,208,218 R17,336,418 81,871,800
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8. Inventories

1
This account consists of inventories held:

' .
September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

: (Unaundited) {Audited)
At cost:
Rgv_v materials ] B4,709,352 B2,425,149
Finished goods 3,243,634 2,467,585
, 7,952,986 4,892 734
AtNRV:
Spare parts, packaging materials and
other supplies P3,456,225 £2,530,649

Work-in-process 481,716 175,965
Subdivision land and condominium and

residential units for sale 2,375,659 1,966,787
By-products - 33,771 26,117
- 6,347,371 4,699,518
Materials in-transit 2,039,708 709,339
£16,340,065 R10,301591

. 9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of;

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

{(Unaudited) {Audited)

Deposit liabilities 89,650,106 P10,301,718
Accrued expenses 7,035,002 7,157,213
Trade payables 7,794,562 6,364,208
Due to related parties 2,118,290 2,434,542
Withholding taxes payable 194,212 226,270
Dividends payable 6,000 4,671
Other payables 1,114,044 1,017,423
' B27,912,216 P27,506,045

Deposit Liabilities

Deposit liabilities represent the savings, demand and time deposit liabilities of RSBC.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses and otheripayables include accruals for interest and various expenses.

Trade Payables

Trade payables which consi%st mostly of payables related to the purchase of inventories are
noninterest-bearing and arenormally settled on sixty (60)-day terms.
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10. Short-term Debt

Short-term debt consists of:

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

(Unaudited) {Audited)
. Parent Company:
Philippine Peso - with interest rates ranging from
4.53% to 6.1% per annum in 2008 and 2007 B- £3,428,500
Subsidiaries:
Foreign currencies - with interest rates ranging
from 1.95% to 3.84% per annum in 2008 and '
from 2.72% to 5.95% per annum in 2007 213,334,503 13,120,809
Philippine Peso - with interest rates ranging from
5.93% to 7.50% per annum in 2008 and 2007 9,269,181 426,400
. 22,603,684 13,547,209

222,603,684 P16,975,709

11. Long-term Debt
Long-term debt (net of debt issuance costs) consists of:

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

' (Unaundited) {Audited)
Parent Company:
Foreign currencies: j
Bayerische HypoVere msbank AG .
(HypoVereinsbank) loan " 12,590,531 2,895,835
Philippine Peso: )
HSBC | 4,270,189 -
| 6,860,720 2,895,835
Subsidiaries: '
Foreign currencies: - ' '
JGSPL US$300 million 8125% guaranteed notes - 11,991,682
URC Philippines, Limited (URCPL) US$125
Y million 9% guaranteed'notes : - 4,912,482
K, . 'URC HypoVeremsbank térm loan facilities 59,587 214,084
.** .4 - URC Bangkok bank term|loan 119,311 280,577
AR URC US$200 million 8.25 % guaranteed notes . 8,938,287 8,958,806
. ‘)!; " JGSPL US$300 million 8% guaranteed notes 12,264,876 10,752,996
YOREE Digitel zero coupon convertible bonds 2,147 1,795
i JGSPL US$300 million term loan 13,930,487 -
Digitel term loan facilities 10,119,854 5,943,717
CAI commercial loan from foreign banks 3,511,888 2,803,449
CAI export credit loan agreement 12,220,664 9,595,605
Suppliers’ credit agreements ' - 7,996
Minimum capacity purchase agreement 70,575 61,920
61,237,676 55,525,109
(Forward)
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- impairment.

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

. (Unaudited) (Audited)
Philippine Peso:
URC 5-year Metrobank loan - -
RLC B1,000 million bonds - 1,000,000
RLC P1,000 million loan facility 340,000 560,000
Philippine Sugar Corporation restructured loan 46,395 52,353
RLC 2,000 million loan facility 2,000,000 3,000,000
RLC F3,000 million loan facility 3,000,000 3,000,000
5,386,395 4,612,353
. 73,484,791 63,033,297
Less current portion 4,510,289 21,443,503
P68,974,502 P41,589,794

The exchange rates used to restate the foreign currency borrowings were £47.05 to US$1.00 and
?41..28 to US§1.00 as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, except for the
foreign currency borrowings of certain subsidiaries with fiscal year ending September 30, which

were restated at P44.90 and P45.04 to US$1.00 as of June 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007,
respectively.

Certain loan agreements contain provisions which, among others, require the maintenance of
specified financial ratios at certain levels and impose negative covenants which, among others,
prohibit a merger or consolit?ation with other entities, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up
except with any of its subsidiaries; prohibit purchase or redemption of any issued shares or
reduction of registered and paid-up capital or distribution of assets resulting in capital base

12.

Cumnulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

.
As of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the details as to the number of preferred shares
of the Parent Company follow:

Authorized 1, 2,000,000,000

Issued:
11.75% preferred stock, P1.00 par value 171,900,000
12.00% preferred stock, B1.00 par value 255,000,000
426,900,000

o
The preferred shares are nonconvertible, nonvoting, nonparticipating, cumulative and redeemable.

Such shares enjoy preference in:case of liquidation but are excluded from the preemptive rights in
the issuance of preferred and common shares.

On July 27 and August 2, 2004, the Parent Company’s BOD authorized the offer and issuance of
255,000,000 and 171,900,000 redeemable preferred shares, respectively. The issuances were

designated as Tranche 1 Series A and Tranche 2 Series A, respectively. On said dates, the BOD
further resolved that the preferred stock shall have a par value of B1.00 per share and an issue

" . price of B5.00 per share, and shall be redeemed on the fifih year from issue date. The dividend

rate shall be 12.00% and 11.75% respectively, and shall be payable quarterly until final
redemption. The Parent Company shall establish a sinking fund for the preferred stock and for the
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sole purpose of providing fupds to pay the redemption value amounting to B3.9 billion, not later
than thirty (30) days after issue date.

f.

13. Equity
As of September 30, 2008 and December 3 1, 2007, the details of the Parent Company’s common
stock follow;
Authorized shares | 12,850,800,000
Par value per share ' B1.00
Issued | 6,805,273,657

{
Capital Management .
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to these ratios in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital
structure or issue capital securities. No changes have been made in the objective, policies and
processes as they have been applied in previous years.

The Group monitors its use of capital structure using a debt-to-capital ratio which is gross debt
divided by total capital. The Group includes within gross debt all interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, while capital represents total equity. Following is a computation of the Group’s debt-
to-capital ratio as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. '

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

_(Unaudited) {Audited)
_ (a) Gross debt
Short-term debt (Note 10) P22,603,684 R16,975,709
Long-term debt (Note 11) 73,484,791 63,033,297
Cumulative preferred shares (Note 12) 2,107,819 2,107,819
) £98.196,294 282,116,825
: (b) Capital £97,433,347 P99, 382,748
A (c) Debt-to-capital ratio (a/c) 1.01:1 0.83:1

The Group’s policy is to keep the debt-to-capital ratio at the 2.0:1 level,

s

- 14. Earnings Per Share

N ' Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to cominon

shareholders divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding (adjusted for
any stock dividends).
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The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic/dilutive EPS computations:

September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007
Net income applicable to common stock P701,646

P5,071,000

Weighted average number of
common shares 6,797,191,657 6,797,191,657
Basic/dijutive EPS RO.10 P0.75

To calculate EPS amounts for the discontinued o
ordinary shares for basic amount is as per table a
figure used as the numerator:

peration, the weighted average number of
bave. The following table provides the profit

_September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007

Net income (loss) attributable to ordinary
- equity holders of the parent from a
discontinued opération for basic EPS

calculations P100,900 (P324,868)
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.

11. Item 9 — Other Events
Please find attached a letter of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (the “Company™)
to the Philippine Stock Exchange dated November 4, 2008 regarding the changes in
the contact numbers of the Company.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

{Registrant)
November 4, 2008 Attm a F. Rivera
(Date) Corporate Secretary

(Signature and Title)
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IG SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.

43¢ FLOOR ROBINSONS EQUITABLE TOWER ADB AVE. COR. POVEDA RD. ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIC CITY
TEL. NO.: 633-7631, 637-1670, 240-8801 FAX NO.:633-9387 OR 633-9207

November 4, 2008

PHTLIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.

Philippine Stock Exchange Center
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, Metro Manila
Attention: Atty. Pete M. Malabanan
Head, Disclosure Department

Gentlemen;

Please be advised that effective November 15, 2008, the telephone and facsimile

numbers of the registered office of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. shall be as follows:

Telephone numbers  : _ (632) 633-7631 to 40
(632) 240-8801

33-9207

Facsimile numbers (632) 6
(632) 240-9106

Thank you.

Very truly yours

ROS*{‘HI%&\ F.RIVERA

Corporate Secretary

Jmhd



COVER SHEET

SEC Mail Processing SEC+-

Section
UEC 15 2008

regningtan, 0 s (4]0 4[4

SEC Registration Nuntber

(Company’s Full Name}

. Rio|(bli{n{s|{o|n|s

olwle|r], AiDIB Alv|e|n|ule cfo|r|n|e

ald|, Olrit|ilg|als Cle|n|t|e|r

{Business Address: No. Street City/Town/Province)

Atty. Rosalinda F, Rivera
Corporate Secretary

633-7631 to 40

(Contact Person)

(Company Telephone Number)

1|2 31 1|7]-}C

Second Thursday of June

Month Day (Form Type)
(Fiscal Year)

Month Day
{Annual Meeting)

Reply to PSE Letter regarding the news article entitled
“6 banks vie for Philam savings bank”

| N/A
{Secandary License Type, If Applicable)

| | |

Dept. Requiring this Doc,

Amended Articles Numbers Section

Total Amount of Borrowings

| L il

Total No. of Stockholders

To be uccomplished by SEC Persennel concerned

HEEENNEEEE

File Number LCU
Document 1D Cashier
f— - — - e sems— - —amEmr—= -
1 ! |
| | |
i STAMPS i
e e e J

Remarks: Please use BLACK ink for scaning purposes.

Domestic Foreign




10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Form 17-C

CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2 (¢) THEREUNDER

November 18, 2008
Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported)

SEC Identification No. 184044 3. BIR TIN: 350-000-775-860

JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified i its charter)

Metro Manila, Philippines 6. Industry Classification Code:
(Province, country or other jurisdiction of
incorporation)

43rd Floor, Robinsons-Equitable Tower, ADB Ave. cor. P. Poveda St., Ortigas
Center, Pasig City 1600
(Address of principal office) {Postal Code)

(632) 633-7631 to 40
Issuer’s telephone number, including area code

I
|
NA
(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA
Number of Shares of
Title of Each Class Common Stock Qutstanding

Common 6,797,191,657

Indicate the item numbers reported herein: ~ Ttem 9




SEC FORM 17-C

JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.

11.  Item 9 — Other Events
Please see the following attached documents:

Annex “A” — Letter of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (the “Company™) te the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) dated November 17, 2008 in response to
the PSE ODiSy letter in Annex “B” below.

Annex “B” — PSE ODiSy letter to the Company dated November 17, 2008
requesting for confirmation/denial of the veracity of and provide additional
information, if any, on the news article in Annex “C” below,

|
Annex “C” — News article entitled “6 banks vie for Philam savings bank”
which appeared in the November 17, 2008 issue of the Philippine Daily

Inquirer (Internet Edition).
-~

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

JG Summit Holdings, Inc. November 18, 2008
(Issuer) ' (Date)

Rosalinda F. Rivera

Corporate Secretary
(Signature and Title)
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" JG SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.

43« FLOOR ROBINSONS EQUITABLE TOWER ADB AVE. COR. POVEDA RD. ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIC CITY

TEL. NO.: 633-7631, 637-1670, 240~8801 FAX NO.: 633-9387 OR 633-9207

November 17, 2008

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
Philippine Stock Exchange Center -
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center

Pasig City, Metro Manila

Attention:

Gentlemen:

Atty. Pete M. Malabanan
Head, Disclosure Department

Ms. Christina Marie C. Fortes
Specialist, Disclosure Department

ANNEX"A "

We refer to your letter dated November 17, 2008 requesting us to confirm/deny the veracity of
the information contained in and to provide additional information, if any, on the news article
entitled 6 banks vie for Philam savings bank” published in the November 17, 2008 issue of the
Philippine Daily Inquirer (Internet Edition) which reported in part that:

“SIX LOCAL BANKS, including those owned by taipans Henry Sy, John Gokongwel and Andrew
Gotianivn, are in the short list of bidders for AIG's consumer banking arm Philam Savings Bank
and awto financing company Prinws Finance and Leasing Inc. The potentiol bidders. which have
until Monday 1o submit a definitive proposal, are Asia United Bank, Banco de Oro Unibeank,
China Banking Corp., Chinatrust (Philippines) Commercial Bank, Eust West Bank and Robinsons

Savings Bank..."

We confirm that Robinsons Savings Bank was included in the short-list of bidders as stated

above,

‘Thank you.

Very truly yours,

JEY L L L .
'"?i,,-if‘:éﬁ}.,,{h £y f

ROSALINDA F. RIVERA
Corporate Sccretary

/mhd
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4 Floar, Philippine Stock Exchange Center,
Exchange Road, Orligas Centar, Pasig City
... | Trunkfine: 688-7600 loc. 7512-7519

~| Fax. Mo. 636-0803

Company 1 JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.
Attention :  Afty. Rosalinda F. Rivera

Corporate Secretary
Subject : "6 banks vie for Philam savings bank”
Date : Monday, November. 17, 2008

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We write with respect to the attached news article entitied “6 banks vie for Philam savings bank” published
in the November 17, 2008 issue of the Phifippine Daily Inquirer (Internet Edition}. The article reporied in part
that:

SIX LOCAL BANKS, including those owned by taipans Henry Sy, Jobn Gokongwei and Andrew
Gotianiun, are in the short list of bidders for AlG's consumer banking arm Philam Savings Bank and
auto financing company Primus Finance and Leasing inc. The potential bidders, which have unil
Monday to submit a definitive proposal, are Asia United Bank, Banco de Oro Unibank, China Banking
Corp., Chinatrust (Phitippines) Cormmercial Bank, East West Bank and Robinsons Savings Bank...

Please confirm/deny the veracity of the above-quoted news ariicle and pravide additional information, if any,
via ODiSy before 9:00 a.m. tomorrow, November 18, 2008, so that we may properly apprise the Trading
Participants and the investing public of the same.

Very truly yours,

(Original Signed)

CHRISTINA MARIE C. FORTES
Specialist, Disclosure Department
Noted by:

{Original Signed)

ATTY. PETE M. MALABANAN
Head, Disclosure Department
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Potential buyers include Sy, Gokongwei, Gotianun

By Doris Dumiao
Philippine Daily tnquirer

. Posied date: November 18, 2008

. $IX LOCAL BANKS, including those owned by taipans Henry Sy, John Gokongwei and Andrew Gotianiun, are in the short
list of bidders for AlG's consumer banking arm Philam Savings Bank and auto financing company Primus Finance and

- Leasing Inc.

- The potential bidders, which have until Monday to submit a definilive propesal, are Asia United Bank, Banco de Cro
Unibank, China Banking Corp., Chinatrust {Philippines) Commercial Bank, East West Bank and Robinsons Savings Bank.,

— banking sources disclosed to the Inquirer.
The sources said beleaguered US financial giant AIG, which has put its Philippine assets on the block as par of a global
streamlining program, could make a decision and pick from among Philam Savings’ suitars very soon.
AlG's consumer units have a combined book value of P1.6 billion—-P1.3 biflion for Philam Savings and P300 million for
Primus Finance, the sources said. As a rule of thumb, seflers of profitable enterprises usually ask for a premium over book

value.

- "You're buying Philam Savings and Primus Finance as if they're a merged enlity. You're really buying the credil card and
auto financing business,” said an officer of |one of the shortlisted banks.

a |
A 24.5-percent stake in Primus Finance, formerly the local auto financing company of Amarican car giant Ford, was
already booked as part of Phifam Savings' assets. But whoever will buy Philam Savings must also pay for the remaining

—~ 75.5-percent stake held by other AIG affiliates, the sources said.

. BDO and China Bank are both owned by retail tycoon Sy while East West Bank is owned by property magnate Gotinianun
of the Fil-invest group.
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SEC Identification No. 184044 3. BIR TIN: 350-000-775-860
JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.
(Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter)
Metro Manila, Philippines 6. l————l (SEC Use Only)

(Province, country or other jurisdiction of  Industry Classification Code:
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Center, Pasig City 1600
(Address of principal office) (Postal Code)

(632) 633-7631 to 40
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Securitics registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4 and 8 of the
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Number of Shares of
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SEC FORM 17-C

JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC.

11. Item 9 — Other Events
Please {ind attached a letter of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (the “Company?)
to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE) dated November 19, 2008 regarding a news article entitled
“Gokongwei and the ex-central bank chief” which appeared in the November 19,
2008 issue of the Philippine Daily Inquirer.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

! (Registrant)
L
MANMA R
November 19, 2008 Atty. Rosalinda F. Rivera
(Date) Corporate Secretary

(Signature and Title)
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]G SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.  ~

43 FLOOR RICBINSONS EQUITABLE TOAVER ADEB AVE. COR. POVEDA RD, QORTICAS CENTER, PASIG CITY
TEL NO.: 6337631, 6371670, 2H-8801  FAX NO,: 633-4387 (OR §33.4207

November 19, 2008

Securities and Exchange Commission
Attention: Corporation and Finance Department
SEC Building, EDSA, Mandaluyong Cily

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

Attention: Atty. Pete M. Malabanan
Head, Disclosure Department
4F PSE Center, Exchange Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Re:  “Gokongwei and the ex-central bank chief” in Biz Buzz of Philippine Datly Inquirer
November 19, 2008

Dear SirfVladame:

We refer to an item in the *Biz Buzz” column of the Pililippiﬂ(: Daily Inquirer cititled
“Gokongwei and the ex-central bank chief” dated November 19, 2008, which states that:

“As far as crisis-related losses go, this Chinese-Filipino nycoon has

probably lost the most. According to our sources, relattons

henween John Gokongwei Jr. and one of is senior advisers, former

central  bank  governor Gabriel  “Gabby™ Singson, has  been

strained of late, after the former lost—by some accounts—as nich
t as S400 million by befting on the peso-dollar exchange rate.”

While there is no direct reference to JG Summit Holdings, Inc., the reference to our Chairman
Emeritus, Mr. John Gokongwei, and former BSP Governor Gabne] Singson, who is one of our
Exccutive Directors, indirectly alludes to our company. In the interest of truth and transparency,
we wish to inform you that the reference to losses from currency speculation in the said article, 15
completely false and has no basis in fact.

Very truly y "if’-‘

\

.

'j‘,‘

T e

JAMES L. GO
Chairman and Chlif Exccutive Oflicer

| END




